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Chairman's Statement
TRHEE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”), | would like
to report the annual results of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2020 (the "Year”) to the shareholders. During
the Year, the Group’s turnover rose by 4% to approximately
RMB2,510 million. Reported profit for the year attributable to
owners of the Company increased by 78% to RMB408 million.
Non-GAAP underlying profit for the Year increased by 15% to
RMB296 million compared to that of RMB257 million in 2019.
Earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
("EBITDA") increased by 36% to RMB656 million. Basic earnings
per share for the Year amounted to 52.69 RMB cents (2019:
29.67 RMB cents).

In appreciation of the shareholders’ support, the Board resolved
to declare a final dividend of 5.7 HK cents per share for the
Year, which is subject to the shareholders’ approval at the
forthcoming annual general meeting (the “"AGM") of the
Company. The proposed final dividend and the interim dividend
of 1.8 HK cents would together bring the total dividend per
share for the Year to 7.5 HK cents (2019: 6.5 HK cents).

The outbreak of the novel coronavirus pneumonia pandemic
(“pandemic”) that swept the world has affected the economic
activities and people’s lives, posing unprecedented challenges
and interruptions to all walks of life. The fine chemical industry
and flavours and fragrances sectors, however, managed to
maintain robust growth despite the pandemic due to the
strong demand from the industries of daily necessities and
anti-epidemic supplies. The overall demand is still growing,
especially in the medicine and daily necessities sectors which
produce anti-epidemic supplies, washing agents, disinfectants
and hygiene materials. Such demand is especially urgent in the
markets that are still affected by the pandemic. Despite the
woeful operating environment, the Group bucked the trend and
managed to achieve commendable growth. As one of the few
enterprises in the global industry that resumed production and
work the soonest amid the pandemic, the Group has successfully
completed on schedule the yearly overhaul and technological
advancement project at its Haicang plant in early February and
fully resumed production on March 6, providing stable supply
to domestic and global clients. The Group has thus contributed
to the worldwide efforts to combat the pandemic and helped
maintain the stability of the global supply chain for daily
necessities. Meanwhile, the Group also made solid progress
in the strategic development and construction of two new
production bases in Gulei and Changtai.
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As a leading fine chemical enterprise in the world, the Group
actively adopted green manufacturing in its operation, thus
setting a role model for domestic peers in safety production and
environmental protection. After the Group’s Haicang plant was
honoured with the title of “Green Factory” by the country’s
Ministry of Industry and Information Technology in 2019 and
received the “Hong Kong Green Awards — Corporate Green
Governance Award” from Hong Kong Green Council in the
same year, the Group obtained the green financing qualification
certification issued by Hong Kong Quality Assurance Agency
("HKQAA") at the beginning of 2020. Subsequently, the Group
completed its first green syndicated financing, showing that
the Group’s sustainability initiatives were highly recognized
and supported by international and local banks. All this
has demonstrated the Group's dedication to its business
vision of being “Ecogreen and Ecofriendly” and fulfilling its
“Commitment to bring health and well-being to the globe”. The
Group will continue to strive for sustainable development and
adhere to the principle of green chemical industry.

The revenue from the Group’s core business “Scent & Taste”
segment dropped by 4% to RMB1,588 million in 2020. During
the year, the fluctuations in the average price of its main raw
material, turpentine, which has a noticeable impact on the
price of natural resources-based products. However, the Group
still managed to expand its market share with a significant
27% increase in sales volume of scent products compared to
last year. Revenue from the “Scent & Taste”. Meanwhile, the
business of petroleum-based aroma chemical products achieved
robust growth thanks to the increase in both prices and sales
volume. In particular, sales of certain petroleum-based aroma
chemical products doubled during the Year as there was raw
materials synergy between the production of these products and
the Group’s functional materials business. The advancement
of the production techniques also contributed to the growth.
The Group has become a major supplier of such products to
the dominant players in the industry and is expected to take
its business to the next level when its new plant in Gulei is
completed and put into operation. Thereby, the Group is poised
to become one of the pillars of the world’s petrochemical
industry in these certain petroleum-based aroma chemicals.
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Chairman’s Statement
TRAES

During the Year, notwithstanding the pandemic weighing
on mainland China’s catering industry, the Group achieved
solid growth in the sales of “Taste” products in both volume
and revenue. Overall, the Group’s “Scent & Taste” business
recorded growth in sales volume and market share, even though
there was a slight decrease in revenue due to the decline in
the price of natural resources-based aroma products. Its gross
profit and gross profit margin also improved. The Group will
continue to make progress in its “Scent & Taste” business by
improving production technology, optimizing the supply chain
and enhancing the synergies between internal and external
production capacity, thereby increasing the output. It will also
accelerate the construction of its new workshops in the Gulei
plant to meet the needs of further business development. The
Group aspires to become a leading and reliable supplier of
“Scent & Taste” products on the global market.

In its “Natural products” business, the Group produces three
major categories of products, namely natural food ingredients,
natural essential oil, and natural extracts. During the Year, these
three categories together recorded a significant increase of
30% in revenue. The revenue from the sales of oyster sauce, in
particular, increased by more than 9% as the Group became the
largest supplier to China’s largest oyster sauce manufacturer.
With the successful completion of the upgrading of Phase Il
of Changtai plant in 2020, the “Natural products” business
has been equipped with production facilities that meet the SC
certification for food production and will be able to scale up
its operation to provide key ingredients of taste and nutrition
for the industries of frozen food, fast food and pet nutrition
food. The natural essential oil production line was officially
put into operation on 5 March 2020, while the food ingredient
production started at the end of the third quarter of 2020. It is
expected that the revenue from the sales of natural extracts will
double in the next three years after the new production lines are
completed and put into operation.
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As to the Group’'s business of functional materials, the
construction of the main unit and its ancillary facilities in
Phase | of Gulei Chemical Industrial Park was completed in
the third quarter of 2020, and it has been commissioned for
trial operation at the end of October. After two months of
hard work, the main unit and its ancillary facilities have now
been successfully put into smooth operation with consistent
production quality. The product quality has been tested and
approved by major international well-known clients, and the
Group's first functional material product has been officially
put up for sales. The product launch produced in Phase |
marked a significant progress in the construction of Gulei
Chemical Industrial Park. Hydrogenated hydrocarbon resin is the
“functional material” product rolled out in the first stage, which
is a key adhesive component for the newly emerging consumer
products and also applicable for the automobile, manufacturing
and construction industries. The functional materials business
is expected to become a new growth driver of the Group
development as it will mark a beginning of the Group’s materials
chemicals business in the future, and will have raw materials
synergy and support to the Group’s existing business of aroma
chemical products. The work on the second stage of Phase | of
the Gulei Chemical Industrial Park commenced at the end of
2020. Several sets of multi-functional units will be built in the
second stage for the production of the most sought-after new
functional chemicals and a new product portfolio under the
“Scent & Taste” business, as a move to accelerate the Group's
development and business expansion. The Group will realize the
synergistic development of resources and business at a higher
level, and the Gulei plant will gradually develop into the core
production base for the Group in its future development and
business expansion.

2021 will be a new starting point for the Group. With the
completion of construction, gradual commissioning and release
of production capacity in Phase | of Gulei Chemical Industrial
Park, the Group has already navigated through its previously
uncharted waters of planning and construction of production
capacity for its new business. Now that EcoGreen is armed with
unique technology, new production facilities, newly released
production capacity and a superior product portfolio, it is ready
to grasp new opportunities for development in the “post-
pandemic” era.
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Chairman’s Statement
TRAES

Although the pandemic is not likely to end in the coming year,
the world’s major economies are poised for a strong rebound
and economic recovery as many countries have already adopted
vigorous anti-pandemic and relief measures. The Group is
ready to seize the opportunities presented by this challenge
and make greater contributions to the development of the
industry by scaling up its production, actively improving its cost
efficiency, optimizing its product mix, continuing with R&D
efforts and forging ahead with its green operation. The Group
is cautiously optimistic about the future growth of its business.
The Group will continue to enhance its competitive advantages,
and is dedicated to build a sustainable future by delivering
promising financial results and sharing value creation with all the
stakeholders.

The Gulei Chemical Industrial Park is the largest industrial
project so far in history of the Group’s development, and it will
be a core production base that will drive the rapid expansion
of the Group’s business. Phase | of the Gulei Chemical
Industrial Park focuses on functional material production
and is designed to produce the well-received, high-end
hydrogenated hydrocarbon resin products. The construction
work was completed, and the trial production of such products
commenced in the third quarter of 2020. Such products will
first serve as substitutes for imports to satisfy the demand from
industries producing hygiene materials, medical protection
products, automotive parts, electronic products and household
cleaning products, as well as emerging industries of new energy
and new materials for 5G telecommunication in China. Equipped
with production automation and safety control systems, the
functional materials project in Phase | has designed an annual
production capacity of 30,000 tonnes, and floor space has
been set aside for doubling the annual production capacity to
60,000 tonnes in the next stage. The Group will strive to achieve
the target capacity the soonest to add impetus to its business
growth.
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In the second stage of Phase | Gulei Chemical Industrial Park
production, the Group will build a national-level engineering
and technology centre to greatly enhance the Group's
technological capability, upgrading its industrialization ability
and speeding up the R&D process. Meanwhile, the Group will
build several sets of multi-functional workshops, to introduce
more hot-selling synthetic aroma chemicals and other functional
chemicals into the market. The Group’s more than 20 years of
experience in innovation and R&D, coupled with the supply of
such downstream petrochemical derivatives as C4, C5 and C9
in Gulei Petrochemical Park, will greatly enhance the synergies
between the Group’s business of functional materials and that of
functional chemicals.

As to the transformation, restructuring, and technological
upgrade of Phase Il in Changtai, the construction of production
lines for natural essential oil and oil extracts were completed in
late February 2020, and operation commenced at the beginning
of March. In addition, the construction of three production
lines for food ingredients and installation of machinery was
completed in September 2020, with trial production commenced
in November. The completion of Phase Il in Changtai has
upgraded the Group’s production set-up in its food ingredients
business, thus enabling the Group to enrich its product portfolio,
enhance the product quality and increase its production
capacity. The Group is well-positioned to boost its revenue
significantly.

The Group will continue to pursue excellence ceaselessly and
promote the global sourcing of raw materials to ensure a stable
supply of natural and petroleum-based raw materials and
soften the blow of fluctuating costs. Meanwhile, the Group
will strengthen its presence and penetration in mainland China,
accelerating the synergetic development of the businesses
of functional chemicals and functional materials. Leveraging
its new production capacity and innovative knowhow as well
as proactive cost management, the Group will make effort
to introduce more hot-selling products into the market and
increase its main products’ market share. More importantly, the
Group will pursue sustainable growth by stepping up its effort to
comply with the regulations governing environmental protection
and safe operation, and carefully evaluating market risks. The
Group will spare no effort to take green chemical manufacturing
and sustainable development to a whole new level by extending
the scope of the green concept from green technology to green
manufacturing and green financing, thus further integrating
the green concept into the Group’s overall development
and achieving all-round green sustainable operation and
development.
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Chairman’s Statement
TRAES

With excellent client services, highly efficient operation,
persistent technological advancement, stringent cost
management and strengthened application of information
technologies, the Group will strive to overcome the difficulties
posed by the pandemic, explore opportunities, vigorously pursue
rapid business growth and enhance its core competitiveness,
thus increasing returns to shareholders.

The Group will remain committed to the noble mission
of “ensuing the health and well-being of the world” and
continue to pursue the business vision of being “Ecogreen and
Ecofriendly”. It will continue to pursue excellence and progress
to meet its business operation targets and maintain consistent
growth.

Lastly, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
heartfelt gratitude to all our shareholders, customers, suppliers,
banks and the staff members for their trust and unwavering
support, which have been the key factors and the motivation
for the Group's success. | would also like to extend my sincere
thanks to all the directors of the Company and the Group's
advisors for their great support and valuable advice. And | wish
everyone health and safety.

Yang Yirong
Chairman
Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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EcoGreen was honored with “2020
Best IR Relations Listed-co Award” at
the 2020 Fenggi Wutong Hong Kong
Stocks Financial Summit.
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EcoGreen was awarded with the Green
Finance Certification by the Hong Kong Quality
Assurance Agency.
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EcoGreen has won the ListCo Excellence Award 2020. ListCo Excellence Award 2020
is the only award co-presented by institutions from Hong Kong and mainland China.
EcoGreen has received the honor this year in recognition of its efforts in achieving
commendable business performance and improving its corporate governance.
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Financial RIgiignts

W5 2

(All amounts in RMB million unless otherwise stated)

Revenue
Gross profit

Operating profit
EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA®

Profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company
— Reported profit for the year

— Non-GAAP underlying profit
for the yeart
Basic earnings per share
(RMB cents)
— Based on reported profit
for the year
— Based on non-GAAP underlying
profit for the yearf
Final dividend per share
(HK cents)

Net asset value per share (RMB)

WA
ER
RgmA
RHABRFE - HE -
88 % 18 8 A0 2 A
RABRHKRFE - BE -
TERBEBRO
RARFEAFERNHE

— FERENE
—FRREHRAUZ
FEEANBEO
BREFBFN(ARESD)

—LFERENEAE
—UIERRBEFRANZ

FEEAMBED
BRARHRE (B¥AL)

BREEFE(ARY)

(BREBHEEBEIN MAREUNEBETARYK
5I{E)

2020 2019 Change

23

2,510 2,423 4%

571 520 10%

410 367 12%

656 483 36%

480 445 8%

408 230 78%

296 257 15%

52.69 29.67 78%
38.20 33.13 15%

5.7 4.8 19%

3.43 2.96 16%

Notes:

(i) Details of the adjusted EBITDA is set out in Note 5 to the
consolidated financial statements.

(i) Non-GAAP financial measures were adopted in order to have
more clearly illustration of the financial results by excluding the
impact of net foreign exchange gain of RMB112.30 million (2019:
exchange loss of RMB26.86 million) on financing activities.

These unaudited non-GAAP financial measures should be
considered in addition to, not as a substitute for, analysis of the
Company’s financial performance prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard (“HKFRS"). Please see
“Non-GAAP Financial Measures” as set out on page 19 for details.
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(All amounts in RMB million unless otherwise stated)

TOTAL ASSETS
BEEAH
o 5,424
4,800 14901 4,884
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2,400
1,200
0
2018 2019 2020
EBITDA
BRAE - HE- - HER
B 2 A
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420
280
140
0
2018 2019 2020
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A
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Financial Highlignts
R R ES

(BR=BEREBEN  FAERBUABETARKESIE)
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EERE
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0 20|8 2019 2020
PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO
EQUITY HOLDERS
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270 215 230
0 2!8 2!9 2020
SALES BY PRODUCT TYPES
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Naturals
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Management biscussion and Analysis
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Revenue

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue
increased by 4% to approximately RMB2.51 billion. Growth in
sales revenue is primarily attributed to the surge in sales volume
of the Group’s products during the year.

()

(ii)

16

Scent & Taste

“Scent & Taste” continued to be the Group’s core product
segment, and constituted a stable and major income
source for the Group during the year under review. As key
ingredients used in many daily consumer goods, “Scent
and Taste” products witnessed rising market demand due
to its diversified applications and the development in the
emerging markets.

During the year under review, the Group has launched
and sold more than 100 types of “Scent” products to
customers around the world. In the first half of the year,
the price of raw materials was at a four-year low, resulting
in a decline in the unit price of the product. It caused a
slight decrease of 4% in revenue compared to last year.
Notwithstanding that, as the Group further expanded its
market share in the field of fragrance, important customers
of the industry became more reliant on the Company’s
integrated supply chain. During the year, the Group
continue improving production technology, optimizing the
supply chain and enhancing the synergies between internal
and external production capacity to increase the output,
thus it led to the significant increase of sales volume by
27% over the last year. In addition, the revenue of “Taste”
products through provision of solutions increased by 8%
over the last year. For the year ended 31 December 2020,
the revenue from the “Scent and Taste” sector decreased
by 4% to RMB1,588 million (2019: RMB 1,649 million),
accounting for 63% of the Group’s overall revenue (2019:
68%).

Naturals

The Group's “Naturals” business produces three major
categories of products, namely natural food ingredients,
natural essential oil, and natural extracts.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the total revenue
from ”"Natural” products was RMB594 million (2019:
RMB456 million), representing an increase of 30% from
last year and accounting for 24% of the Group’s sales
volume (2019: 19%).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

RB\/BHUB (continued)

(iii) Specialties and Others

Besides the chiral pharmaceuticals and specialty chemicals,
the Group also applies similar advanced technologies of
synthesis to produce agrochemical “Specialties” chemicals,
which will be turned into a kind of eco-pesticide later.
In terms of functional chemicals in “Others” segment,
disinfectant chemicals maintained a steady stream of
business; an expansion to include electronic chemicals is
also in the works. Following the Group’s development in
the supply chain of petroleum-based products, it is believed
that the functional chemicals business will usher in a period
of growth.

During the year under review, revenue of products in this
category rose up slightly by 3% to RMB328 million (2019:
RMB317 million) and accounting for 13% (2019: 13%) of
the Group’s sales volume.

Gross Profit

During the year under review, the Group's gross profit increased
by 10% to RMB571 million. Gross profit margin increased from
21.5% in 2019 to 22.7% in 2020. By the products category,
the gross profit margin of “Scent and Taste” increased from
22.4% in 2019 to 24.1% in 2020, while “Naturals” marginally
decreased from 17.6% in 2019 to 17.0% in 2020. The gross
profit margin of “Specialties and Others” increased from 22.0%
in 2019 to 26.7% in 2020.

Operating Expense

For the year ended 31 December 2020, selling and marketing
expenses accounted for 1.5% of the Group’s turnover (2019:
1.5%) whereas the administrative expenses accounted for 4.5%
of turnover (2019: 4.5%). Under the Group's effective cost-
cutting measures, the operating expenses remained stable in
these two years.
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BEEN® MO

Other (losses)/income, net

During the year, the appreciation of the Renminbi caused the
Group to record a net exchange loss of RMB3.36 million (2019:
gain of RMB1.97 million) at operation. The Group also recorded
net realized losses on RMB/USD forward foreign exchange
contracts of RMB12.17 million (2019: RMBO0.73 million).
Nevertheless, the Group has not experienced any material
difficulties or effects on its operations or liquidity as a result of
fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year. Overall,
there was net other (losses)/income of RMB11.04 million in this
year (2019: RMB7.88 million).

Net finance income/(expenses)

As a significant portion of the Group’s borrowings is
denominated in United States Dollar (“USD"”) and Hong Kong
Dollar (“HKD"), the fluctuation of the RMB during the year
has led to the exchange gain of RMB112.30 million (2019:
exchange loss of RMB26.86 million) mainly arising from bank
borrowings denominated in foreign currency. During the year,
borrowing costs attributable to the construction of Gulei and
Changtai plants was capitalised. As the amount of construction
in progress throughout this year was at a higher level than
last year, the amount of interest capitalised was increased to
RMB51.81 million (2019: RMB44.76 million). On the other hand,
the lower borrowing rates in this year have resulted in a decrease
in interest expense to RMB97.78 million (2019: RMB101.6
million). As a whole, there was net finance income of RMB101.0
million (2019: net finance expenses of RMB42.3 million).

Taxation

Tax expense of the Group for 2020 was RMB102.8 million (2019:
RMB97.4 million). Effective tax rate of the Group is 20.1%
(2019: 29.8%).

Profit for the Year

Reported profit attributable to shareholders in 2020 was
RMB408 million, representing an increase of 78% as compared
to a profit of RMB230 million in 2019. Basic earnings per share
was approximately RMB52.69 cents (2019: RMB29.67 cents).
The EBITDA amounted to RMB656 million as compared to
RMB483 million in 2019, representing an increase of 36%.

Non-GAAP underlying profit in 2020 was RMB296 million,
representing an increase of 15% as compared to the non-GAAP
underlying profit of RMB257 million in 2019. Basic earnings per
share based on Non-GAAP underlying profit for the year was
approximately RMB38.20 cents (2019: RMB33.13 cents).
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

To supplement the consolidated results of the Group prepared
in accordance with HKFRS, non-GAAP underlying profit for the
year have been presented in this announcement. The Company’s
management believes that the non-GAAP financial measures
provide investors with more clear view on the Group’s financial
results, and with useful supplementary information to assess the
performance of the Group’s strategic operations by excluding
net foreign exchange gain of RMB112.3 million (2019: net
exchange loss of RMB26.86 million) on financing activities.

Nevertheless, the use of non-GAAP financial measures has
limitations as an analytical tool. It should be considered in
addition to, not as a substitute for, analysis of the Company’s
financial performance prepared in accordance with HKFRS.

Liguidity, Financial Resources and Gapital Structure

During the year under review, the Group’s primary source of
funding mainly included the cash generated from financing
activities and internal resources. For the year ended 31
December 2020, net cash generated from operating activities
amounted to RMB144 million (2019: RMB237 million). The
Group had net cash generated from investing activities of RMB6
million (2019: net cash used in investing activities of RMB301
million). During the year under review, the net cash inflow
generated from financing activities amounted to RMB353 million
(2019: RMB123 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the inventories’, trade receivables’ and
trade payables’ average turnover days were 42 days, 147 days
and 61 days (2019: 42 days, 146 days and 53 days), respectively.

The Group’s financial position remained very solid and healthy
during the year under review. As at 31 December 2020, the
total equity of the Group was RMB2.66 billion (2019: RMB2.30
billion). The net current assets and the current ratio of the Group
as at 31 December 2020 were approximately RMB1,981 million
(2019: RMB1,332 million) and 2.5 (2019: 1.8), respectively.
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E%FFITHFFH& Tﬁ

Liguidity, Financial Resources and Gapital Structure

(continued)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had borrowings and bills
payable of approximately RMB2,237 million and RMB257 million
(2019: RMB1,898 million and RMB250 million), respectively.
Among the Group's borrowing, outstanding short-term
borrowings amounted to RMB861 million (2019: RMB1,351
million). As at 31 December 2020, the Group's ratio of
borrowings to total equity, was approximately 84% (2019: 83%)
and the Group’s net debt, being pledged bank deposits, short-
term bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents less borrowings
and bills payable amounted to RMB945 million (2019: RMB590
million).

With its available bank credit facilities and its existing cash
resources, the Group has very strong liquidity and sufficient
financial resources to meet its commitments, working capital
requirements and future investments for expansion.

Treasury Policies and Exposure to Fluctuations in
Exchange Rates

Due to the combined factors that the sales and the purchases
of raw materials of the Group are mainly denominated in USD
and RMB, that the major production base is in China, that the
Group’s borrowings are primarily in USD, RMB and HKD, and
that the consolidated financial statements are presented in RMB,
exchange risks derived from the conversion from USD or HKD
to RMB are involved. The Group will review its current hedging
policy for foreign exchange in due course to further reduce
foreign exchange risks in the short-to-long-term.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group’'s borrowings of
approximately RMB508 million, RMB1,497 million and RMB233
million (2019: RMB503 million, RMB678 million and RMB717
million) were denominated in RMB, USD and HKD respectively.

Interest is mainly charged on a floating rate basis. It is expected
that USD interest rates will continue to hover at a low level in
2021. The Group will continue to monitor the interest rates
fluctuation in the market and take appropriate actions to
minimize the interest rate risk.
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slographical Details of Directors and eni

anagement
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ESREREEAERRE

Executive Directors

Mr. YANG Yirong

Chairman and President, Chairman of Nomination Committee
Mr. Yang, aged 59, is the founder of the Group. He is
responsible for strategic planning and formulation of overall
corporate development policy for the Group. Mr. Yang holds
a Bachelor’s degree in science, majoring in chemistry from
Huagiao University in 1982. Prior to founding the Group in
1994, Mr. Yang has extensive experience in the fine chemical
manufacturing and trading and has more than 27 years of
experience in natural organic chemistry research.

Mr. GONG Xionghui

Senior Vice President — Functional Materials Division

Mr. Gong, aged 57, is responsible for project construction and
strategic investment development. Mr. Gong holds a Master’s
degree in chemical engineering from Xiamen University and
has accumulated over 33 years of experience in fine chemicals
industry and qualified as an ISO 9000 auditor in the PRC in 1998.
He joined the Group in September 1999.

Ms. LU Jiahua

Senior Vice President — Group Financial Control, Member of
Remuneration Committee

Ms. Lu, aged 54, oversees the finance and accounting and
human resources functions for the Group in the PRC. She
has over 31 years of experience in accounting, financial
management, administration management and internal auditing
in a number of pharmaceutical and fine chemical manufacturing
enterprises. Ms. Lu holds a Bachelor's degree and a Master'’s
degree in economics and corporate management from Xiamen
University. She joined the Group in April 2002.

Mr. LIN Zhigang

Senior Vice President — Group’s Aroma Chemicals Business

Mr. Lin, aged 50, is responsible for the management of the
Group'’s operation in aroma chemicals business. He holds
a Bachelor's degree of economics obtained from Xiamen
University. Prior to joining the Group in June 1996, he worked
in a foreign investment enterprise and has concrete experience
in sales and marketing management, business development and
production management.
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Biographical Details of Directors and senior Management

EENEREEAERE

EXBCU“VB D”BC[D[S (continued)

Dr. LIN David Ying Tsung

Senior Vice President — Engineering Project Management and
Gulei Division

Dr. Lin, aged 69, joined the Group as an independent non-
executive Director on 10 June 2016. After his redesignation as
an executive Director on 28 March 2018, he is responsible for
the management of the construction of the Gulei project and
the operation and management of the Gulei Industrial Hub in
the future. He obtained the Doctor of Chemical Engineering
from the University of lllinois, USA. He has accumulated over
38 years of experience in the chemical industry, with extensive
experience in research and development, business development,
sales and management of chemical-related projects. He has
been working in Honeywell UOP, Formosa Plastics, Dragon
Aromatics and HaiShunde Special Oil Co, and is responsible for
large-scale chemical project management and the development
and commercialization of petrochemical technology. He has
awarded numerous honors and awards at Honeywell UOP and
was awarded as a leading expert in Zhangzhou's outstanding
Taiwanese business leaders.

Mr. HAN Huan Guang

Senior Vice President — Group Strategic Investments and Capital
Markets, Member of Remuneration Committee, Member of
Nomination Committee

Mr. Han, aged 59, responsible for strategic investments,
capital markets and investor relations. He graduated from
Zhongshan University (F1LUX2) with a Bachelor’'s degree
in biochemistry in 1982 and obtained his Master’s degree
in Business Administration from University of Technology,
Sydney, Australia in 1993. He has over 31 years’ experience in
corporate finance, merger and acquisition, infrastructure and
new technology developments, management of listed and non-
listed companies in the PRC and overseas. Over the years, he has
been a Director, and then Managing Director in China Everbright
Medicine Co. Ltd. (a subsidiary of China Everbright Holdings
Group), Livzon Pharmaceutical Group Inc. and in other senior
management positions in Hong Kong, Singapore and Mainland
companies. He has been appointed as a Councilor of the China
Society of Biotechnology, and also member of some professional
associations in the region. Mr. Han joined the Group in
September 2005 as a non-executive Director, and became an
executive Director from May 2006.
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Blographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Independent Non-executive Directors (INED(S))

Mr. YAU Fook Chuen

Chairman of Audit Committee, Member of Remuneration
Committee, Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Yau, aged 63, is a practising accountant and has over 31
years of experience in public accountancy practice which covers
company secretarial service, accountancy, auditing and taxation.
He is a member of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr. Yau is currently the proprietor of Yau & Wong,
Certified Public Accountants in Hong Kong. He was appointed as
an INED in February 2004.

Prof. Xiang Ming

Member of Audit Committee, Member of Remuneration
Committee, Member of Nomination Committee

Prof. Xiang Xiang, 58 years old, is a professor at the Polymer
Research Institute of Sichuan University. He has long been
engaged in the research and development of polymer materials.
Prof. Xiang has more than 32 years of experience in technical
research and development services for the industrial sector. He
is familiar with managing the research and development on
technology and product for Chinese companies. He obtained the
certificate of the independent director of the PRC in 2006. Prof.
Xiang was appointed as an independent director for Yunnan
Yuntianhua Co., Ltd. (a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange, stock code: 600096) as the role of a technical expert
from 2006 to 2012. He was appointed as an INED in April 2019.

Mr. WONG Yik Chung, John

Chairman of Remuneration Committee, Member of Audit
Committee, Member of Nomination Committee

Mr. Wong, aged 54, among being the Independent Non-
executive Director of the Company, was also served as an
Independent Non-executive Director of a few companies listed
in Hong Kong and oversea stock exchanges. He is a professional
accountant by training with more than 28 years of experience in
auditing and corporate finance work, with extensive exposure
to the business enterprise in the PRC. He was admitted as
a member of the Australian Society of Certified Practising
Accountants in February 1992 and as an associate member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
April 1997. He also obtained a PRC Certificate of Independent
Directorship in 2002. He was appointed as an INED in February
2004.
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Dr. LIU Yaoquan, Gary

Innovative Technology Director

Dr. Liu, aged 57, joined the Group in March 2014. He is
responsible for the technology and innovation of the Group.
Dr. Liu obtained the Master’'s degree in chemistry from the
Chinese Academy of Science, Doctoral degree in chemistry from
the University of Alberta, Canada and Postdoctoral research
fellow of University of California, United States of America. He
has been engaged in research in terpene chemicals and aroma
chemicals as well as organic synthesis of natural alkaloids in
Guangzhou Chemistry Research Institutes of Chinese Academy
of Sciences and University of Hanover, Germany. Dr. Liu was the
Senior Scientist of KOSAN Biosciences, Inc. and the Chemistry
Director of Evolva, United States of America.

Mr. YAN Da Yi, David

General Manager — Marketing and Sales of Aroma Chemicals
Mr. Yan, aged 60, General Manager of the Marketing and Sales
of Aroma Chemicals, Mr. Yan holds a Bachelor’s degree in
Engineering. Mr. Yan has 37 years work experience in Canada,
Hong Kong and China. Before joining the Group in May 2004,
he worked for eight years in a well-known software company
in Hong Kong, for positions in marketing, sales, servicing and
administrative departments.

Mr. XIAO Liyuan

Aroma Chemicals Operations Manager

Mr. Xiao, aged 57, Director of Aroma Chemicals Operations.
Before joining the Group in February 2001, he was the deputy
manager in a large chemical enterprise. Mr. Xiao has more than
38 years experience of production management.

Mr. LAM Kwok Kin

Financial Controller and Company Secretary

Mr. Lam, aged 47, is the financial controller and company
secretary of the Company. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in
accountancy and is a fellow member of both the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Prior to joining the Group in
October 2003, he worked with an international accounting
firm for 7 years and was the financial controller and company
secretary of a company listed on the Stock Exchange. Mr. Lam
has extensive experience in auditing, accounting, budgeting and
company secretarial work.
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LOrporate Governance Report

The Board acknowledges the importance of and benefit from
good corporate governance practices and is committed to
improving the corporate governance practices in order to
enhance better transparency and to ensure that business
activities and decision making processes are regulated in a
proper manner to safeguard the interests of shareholders.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles (the “Principles”) and code provisions (the “Code
Provisions”) as set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code"”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company
has complied with the Code Provisions under and the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules
except for the deviations from Code Provisions A.2.1.

The following summarises the Company’s corporate governance
practices and explains deviations, if any, from the CG Code.

CORPORATE GOVERNANGE

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility of: (i)
developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and make recommendations to the
Board; (ii) reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Company’s Directors and senior
management; (iii) reviewing and monitoring the Company’s
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements; (iv) developing, reviewing and monitoring codes
of conduct and compliance manuals (if any) applicable to the
Company’s employees and Directors; and (v) reviewing the
Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year under review, the Board reviewed and
monitored the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and company secretary of the
Company in compliance with the CG Code and the Listing
Rules. Further, the Board reviewed and monitored the Group’s
policies and practices and noted that the Group had complied
with the relevant legal and regulatory requirements in all
material respects during the year under review. The Board also
reviewed the employees’ manual applicable to the employees
of the Company. Lastly, the Board has reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and the disclosure of this
Corporate Governance Report.
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Gorporate Governance Report
PEERRS

THE BOARD
Responsibilities

The Board is accountable to the shareholders for leading the
Group in a responsible and effective manner. The Board provides
leadership and formulates strategic policies and plans of the
Group with a view to enhancing shareholder interests while
the day-to-day operations of the Group are delegated to the
management.

The Board reserves for its decisions all major matters of the Group,
including: objectives and overall strategies of the Group; annual
budgets and financial matters; equity related transactions such as
issue of shares/options and repurchase of shares; dividend; raising of
capital loan; determination of major business strategy; merger and
acquisition; major investment; annual financial budget in turnover,
profitability and capital expenditure; review and approval of financial
performance and announcement; and matters as required by laws
and ordinance.

The management has the obligation to supply the Board and
the various Committees with adequate information in a timely
manner to enable the members to make informed decisions.
Each Director has separate and independent access to the
Company’s senior management to acquire more information
than is volunteered by management and to make further
enquiries if necessary. The functions delegated to management
are periodically reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the
Board prior to any significant transactions entered into by the
management.
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THE BOARD (conrinuen)
Composition and role

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises a total of nine
members including six executive Directors and three INEDs, as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman & President)
Ms. Lu Jiahua

Mr. Gong Xionghui

Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung

Mr. Han Huan Guang

Mr. Lin Zhigang

INEDs

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen

Prof. Xiang Ming

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John

The INEDs together have substantial experience in fields of
auditing, legal matters, business, accounting, corporate internal
control and regulatory affairs. The Board’s composition covers
a balance of expertise, skills and industry experience so as to
bring in valuable contributions and advices for the development
of the Group’s business. Through active participation in Board
meetings, taking the lead in managing issues involving potential
conflict of interests and serving on Board committees, all INEDs
make various contributions to the effective direction of the
Group.

The INEDs also serve the important function of ensuring and
monitoring the basis for an effective corporate governance
framework. One INED possesses appropriate professional
qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise. The INEDs are explicitly identified in all of the
Company’s corporate communications.
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Gorporate Governance Report
PEERRS

THE BOARD (conrivuen)
C[]mDUSiHOﬂ aﬂﬂ r0|e (continued)

The Board considers that each INED is independent in character
and judgment and that they all meet the specific independence
criteria as required by the Listing Rules. Pursuant to Code
Provision A.4.3, any further appointment of INED serving more
than nine years should be subject to a separate resolution to be
approved by the shareholders of the Company. Notwithstanding
that Mr. Yau Fook Chuen (“Mr. Yau”) and Mr. Wong Yik Chung
John (“Mr. Wong"”) have served as INEDs of the Company
for more than nine years, (i) the Board has assessed and
reviewed the annual confirmation of independence based on
the requirement set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
affirmed that Mr. Yau and Mr. Wong remain independent; (ii)
the Nomination Committee of the Company has assessed and
is satisfied of the independence of Mr. Yau and Mr. Wong; and
(iii) the Board considers that Mr. Yau and Mr. Wong remain
independent of management and free of any relationship which
could materially interfere with the exercise of his independent
judgement. Notwithstanding the length of their service, the
Company believes that their valuable knowledge and experience
in the Group’s business will continue to benefit the Company
and the shareholders as a whole.

Board meetings

The Board meets regularly throughout the year to discuss
the overall strategy as well as the operation and financial
performance of the Group. The Chairman is primarily responsible
for drawing up and approving the agenda for each board
meeting in consultation with all directors. Notices of regular
board meetings are served to all Directors at least 14 days
before the meetings while reasonable notice is generally
given for other Board meetings and the directors can include
matters for discussion in the agenda if necessary. Agenda
and accompanying board papers in respect of regular board
meetings are sent out in full to all directors within reasonable
time before the meeting. Draft minutes are normally circulated
to Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version is open for Directors’ inspection.
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THE BOARD (coninuen)
B[]ar[] meetiﬂgs (continued)

Minutes of board meetings and meetings of board committees
are kept by duly appointed secretaries of the respective meetings
and all directors have access to board papers and related
materials, and are provided with adequate information in a
timely manner, which enable the Board to make an informed
decision on matters placed before it.
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A total of 4 board meetings were held during the year. The FRAHEBITIRESTSEH - HE2020412
individual attendance record of each Director at the meetings A31BHIFE  SE=RE=eed  FE
of the Board, the Remuneration Committee and the Audit Eee3rEZRESe ey LEDENT -
Committee during the year ended 31 December 2020 is set out
below:
Number of meetings attended/held
HE/ BEERY
Full
Board  Nomination  Remuneration Audit
General meetings Committee Committee Committee
meeting 2EREHE meeting meetings meetings
Name of Director 4.2 RRAE CEZEEZ RYZEEES FMZEEEE EZnZEEEd

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS YrES

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman) BREBAE(LE) n
Mr. Gong Xionghui BlEREE 11
Ms. Lu Jiahua EFERT 11
Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung RERET 11
Mr. Han Huan Guang RELEE 11
Mr. Lin Zhigang HERLE n
INEDs BUIFHTES

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ER2%EE n
Prof. Xiang Ming BEESH 11
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John HERLE 111

4/4 1 = =
414 = = =
414 = 17N =
414 = = =
414 1 1N =
414 = = =
414 1 1N 33
414 1 1N 33
414 1 1N 33

According to current Board practice, any material transaction
which involves a conflict of interest for a substantial shareholder
or a Director, will be considered and dealt with by the Board
at a duly convened board meeting. The Company’s Articles of
Association also contain provisions requiring Directors to abstain
from voting and not to be counted in the quorum at meetings
for approving transactions in which such Directors or any of their
associates have a material interest.
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THE BOARD (conrivuen)
Training for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives comprehensive, formal
and tailored induction on the first occasion of his appointment,
so as to ensure that he has appropriate understanding of the
business and operations of the Company and that he is fully
aware of his responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. There are also
arrangements in place for providing continuing briefing and
professional development to Directors whenever necessary.

The Directors are continually updated with the regulatory
requirements, business activities and development of the
Company to facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities.
Through regular Board meetings and emails, all Directors are
kept abreast of the conduct, business activities and development
of the Company. During the year, the Directors have attended
various in-house briefings and internal or external seminars/
trainings, and have read internal or external newsletters,
updates and other reading materials covering topics such as
business of the Company, corporate governance, industry
knowledge, regulatory updates, finance and management.

Appointment, rotation and re-glection of Directors

Pursuant to the Articles of Association of the Company, all newly
appointed Directors of the Company shall hold office until the
next general meeting and shall then be eligible for re-election.
Every Director, including those appointed for a specific term
shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years at the AGM. The retiring Directors shall be eligible
for re-election.

In accordance with article 108(A) of the articles of association
of the Company, Mr. Yang Yirong, Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung
and Mr. Yau Fook Chuen will retire as Directors by rotation and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election as Directors at the
AGM.

Term of appointment of INEDS

All INEDs were appointed for an initial term of not more than
one year and will be renewable automatically for successive
term of one year until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party or the other. All INEDs
are subject to retirement by rotation once every three years and
are subject to reelection.
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THE BOARD (conrivuen)

Segregation of Roles of Chairman and Chief Executive
Officer ("CEQ")

The Company has not yet adopted A.2.1. Under the Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of Chairman and CEO
should be separate and would not be performed by the same
individual. The division of responsibilities between the Chairman
and CEO should be clearly established and set out in writing.

The Company does not presently have any officer with the title
CEO. At present, Mr. Yang Yirong, being the Chairman and
the President of the Company, is responsible for the strategic
planning, formulation of overall corporate development policy
and running the business of the Group as well as the duties
of Chairman. The Board considers that, due to the nature
and extent of the Group’s operations, Mr. Yang is the most
appropriate chief executive because he possesses in-depth
knowledge and experience in fine chemicals business and is able
to ensure the sustainable development of the Group. Besides, he
is the founder, the chairman and the controlling shareholder of
the Group since its establishment and till now. Notwithstanding
the above, the Board will review the current structure from time
to time. When at the appropriate time and if candidate with
suitable leadership, knowledge, skills and experience can be
identified within or outside the Group, the Company may make
the necessary amendments.

Gompany Secretary

The company secretary of the Company, Mr. Lam Kwok Kin, is
responsible for ensuring that board procedures comply with all
applicable laws, rules and regulations and advising the Board
on corporate governance matters. He is also responsible for
taking and keeping minutes of all Board and board committee
meetings. Draft version of minutes is normally circulated to
the Directors for comment within a reasonable time after each
meeting and the final version of which is open for the Director’s
inspection. Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible
for keeping all Directors updated on Listing Rules, regulatory
requirements and internal codes of conduct of the Company.
He has attained no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year.

Indemnification

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of legal actions against its Directors and officers. The
Board reviews the extent of this insurance annually.
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Gorporate Governance Report
PEERRS

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee for overseeing particular aspects of the Company’s
affairs. All Board committees of the Company are established
with defined written terms of reference which deal clearly with
their authority and duties. The terms of reference of the Board
committees are posted on the Company’s website and are
available to shareholders upon request.

The chairmen of the committees will report the findings and
recommendations of the committees to the Board after each
meeting. The minutes of all meetings of the committees are
circulated to the Board for information.

Audit Gommittee

The Audit Committee was established in 2004. Its current
members comprises three INEDs, namely Mr. Yau Fook Chuen
(the chairman of the committee), Prof. Xiang Ming and Mr.
Wong Yik Chung, John, in which Mr. Yau Fook Chuen possesses
the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise.

The Board considers that each Audit Committee member
has broad commercial experience and there is a suitable mix
of expertise in accounting, business and legal on the Audit
Committee. The new written terms of reference which describe
the authority and duties of the Audit Committee were adopted
in March 2017 to conform to the provisions of the New CG
Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website.

The Audit Committee meets regularly to review the Group’s
financial reporting and other information to shareholders,
the system of internal controls, risk management and the
effectiveness and objectiveness of the audit process. The Audit
Committee also provides an important link between the Board
and the Company’s auditors in matters coming within the
scope of its terms of reference and keeps under review the
independence and objectivity of the auditors.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee held three
meetings with the senior management to review, consider and
approve the interim and annual financial statements, discuss
internal controls matters and the re-appointment of the external
auditor. The Audit Committee has also reviewed the Group’s
accounting principles and practices, Listing Rules and statutory
compliance and financial reporting matters.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conrvuen)
Remuneration Committes

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2004. Its
current members comprises three INEDs, namely, Mr. Wong Yik
Chung, John (the chairman of the committee), Prof. Xiang Ming
and Mr. Yau Fook Chuen and two executive Directors, Mr. Han
Huan Guang and Ms. Lu Jiahua.

The Remuneration Committee advises the Board on the Group’s
overall policy and structure for the remuneration of directors and
senior management. The Remuneration Committee ensures that
no director or any of his associate is involved in deciding his own
remuneration. The new terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee were adopted in March 2012 to conform to the
provisions of the New CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the
Company’s website.

In determining the emolument payable to directors, the
Remuneration Committee takes into consideration factors such
as salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and the desirability of performance-
based remuneration.

During the year under review, the Remuneration Committee held
one meetings to review and consider the remuneration policy
and packages, including any discretionary management bonus of
the Executive Directors and senior management by reference to
market conditions, performance of the Group and the individual
and corporate goals.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (conrnuen)
senior management remuneration by band

The emoluments of the senior management of the Group fell
within the following band:

%E%Eg

i

RREEEFH -—RESHEZR

7
ARESREEEONSETIIEABER :

Remuneration bands [l Number of individuals
AE
2020 2019
Below HK$500,000 HH500,000TIA T 1 2
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 75 #500,001 L2 % %1,000,0007T 1 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$ 1,500,000 75 #1,000,001 7c 2% #1,500,0007T 2 2
4 5

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in 2012. Its current
members comprises two executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang
Yirong (the chairman of the Committee) and Mr. Han Huan
Guang and three INEDs, namely, Mr. Yau Fook Chuen, Prof.
Xiang Ming and Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John. The Nomination
Committee has the duty of reviewing annually the board
structure and composition.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee were
adopted in March 2012 to confirm to the provision of the New
CG Code, a copy of which is posted on the Company’s website.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during the year

to review the structure, size and composition, and assessing the
independence of the INEDs.
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RESPONSIBILITIES IN RESPECT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The management provides such explanation and information to
the Board to facilitate an informed assessment of the financial
and other information put before the Board for approval. The
Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view
and the statement of the independent auditor of the Company
about their reporting responsibilities on the consolidated
financial statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” on pages 53 to 61.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports,
price-sensitive announcements and other financial disclosures
required under the Listing Rules and other regulatory
requirements. Meanwhile, the Directors are responsible for
ensuring that appropriate accounting policies are selected and
applied consistently; and that judgments and estimates made
are prudent and reasonable. The Board was not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that might
cast significant doubt upon the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. The Board has prepared the consolidated
financial statements on a going concern basis.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding the
Directors’ securities transactions on terms not less exacting than
the required standard set out in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors and all the Directors have confirmed
that they have complied with all the relevant requirements as set
out in the Model Code throughout the year ended 31 December
2020.

Gorporate Governance Report

A
TEERRE

FRAHBBEERR2EE

EEERH—VBERER  URE=ESEM
B2 THERE T AEE 2 MK EAME R
ARPE - EEANTHARHREERATHNAHY
BHR BT AARBUKBORESEH S
HUBHERZBRERTBARNFES3E61HZ
(B ZBEEREE]

MEFSUARATHFRETHRSE - REK
BREMAMARRE EHRAREMEERE
ATRENEGHMEEMNREZYE  BHMES
RERHFE - ARTAAERERRARE 2
B BEREREA - BR{EAE REFTE
EARE EFQVTHNEBEMNAEEREYE
AEBRBEREREZRINERTHAEH
HEN - At EFEEERAKERELE
ZRBRETHREAHREVBTERE -

ETEFRZH

RAGREHRN—EBBESETELFRINT
AR ERTBR LR AIKE108TH £
MBETAEFTETEFRFNZESFR([1ZE
SR DMBEEE - ARRIEMEEBEEER
BEREHR ME2RESNEHER  BEREE
202012 A31 B It FE —HETIZESFRIFT
BB EBAE -

%% 37 B

=

Annual Report 2020 | —ZE - ZFFR 35



Gorporate Governance Report

A
TEBERRS

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives,
and maintaining appropriate and effective risk management and
internal control systems. The Board oversees management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems. The systems and internal controls
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss, as they are designed to manage,
rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives.

The Group has established an on-going process for identifying,
evaluating and managing the significant risks of the Group.
Business units are responsible for identifying, assessing and
monitoring risks associated with their respective units. The
results of evaluation will be reported to management through
regular internal meetings. Each year, management prepares
the risk assessment report listing the risks identified and
management’s assessment on the impact to the Group. The
Board discusses findings in the risk assessment report and
evaluates the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system in Board meeting.

The Group handles and disseminates inside information with due
care. Staff is required to comply with the confidentiality terms
inside the staff manual. Only personnel at appropriate level can
get reach of price sensitive and inside information.

Appropriate policies and controls have been designed and
established to ensure that assets are safeguarded against
improper use or disposal, relevant rules and regulations are
adhered to and complied with, reliable financial and accounting
records are maintained in accordance with relevant accounting
standards and regulatory reporting requirements.

The Group does not have an internal audit function due to
the size of the Group and for cost effectiveness consideration.
During the year under review, the Board conducted reviews
of the internal control systems of the Company from time to
time and considered that such the internal control systems of
the Company had been implemented effectively. The reviews
covered all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions. The
Board also considered the Group's adequacy of resources,
qualifications and experience of staff in its accounting and
financial reporting functions, and their training programmes and
budget. The Group continues to review the need for an internal
audit function annually.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

During the year, PricewaterhouseCoopers, the external auditor
of the Company received audit fee of approximately RMB2.56
million for audit services provided to the Group.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has adopted a Shareholders” Communication
Policy in March 2012 reflecting mostly the current practices
of the Company for communication with its shareholders.
Information will be communicated to shareholders through:
(i) continuous disclosure to the Stock Exchange of all material
information; (ii) periodic disclosure through the annual and
interim reports; (iii) notices of meetings and explanatory
material; (iv) the AGM and other general meetings; and (v) the
Company’s website at www.ecogreen.com.

General Meeting

The Board endeavours to maintain an on-going dialogue with
shareholders and in particular, use AGM or other general
meetings to communicate with shareholders and encourage
their participation. The Chairman of the Board attended the
AGM held in 2020 to answer questions and collect views of
shareholders. The external auditor also attended the AGM to
answer questions of shareholders.

voting by pall

Separate resolutions are proposed at the general meetings
on each substantially separate issue, including the election
of individual directors. In addition, poll voting procedure is
included in the circular to shareholders dispatched together with
the annual report and will be explained during the proceedings
of meetings. Poll results will be posted on the website of the
Stock Exchange and the Company subsequent to the close of the
shareholders meeting.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS (conmmuen)
Investor Relations

The Company continues to enhance communications and
relationships with its investors. Designated senior management
has maintained close communication with shareholders and
investors through email, conference call, one-on-one meetings,
attending broker conferences, and non-deal roadshows, to
ensure that investors and shareholders have received the
Company’s updates in a fair and timely manner and to facilitate
their investment decision-making. Enquiries from investors are
dealt with in an informative and timely manner. To promote
effective communication, the Company also maintains corporate
website (www.ecogreen.com) where extensive information
and updates on the Company’s business developments and
operations, financial information, corporate governance
practices and other information are posted.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

The Company has only one class of shares. All shares have the
same voting rights and are entitled to the dividend declared. The
rights of the Shareholders are set out in Company’s Articles of
Association. Shareholders of the Company can: (i) convene an
extraordinary general meeting; (ii) put forward enquiries to the
board of directors; (iii) put forward proposals at shareholders’
meetings; and (iv) propose Directors for election. Details of
relevant procedures are available on the Company’s website.

Constitutional Documents

There was no change in the memorandum and articles of
association of the Company during the year ended 31 December
2020.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of EcoGreen International Group
Limited (the “Company”) submit their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES, GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS AND BUSINESS
REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 10 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group's performance for the year by operating
segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities and an
indication of likely future developments in the Group’s business,
can be found in the Chairman’s Statement and Management
Discussion and Analysis set out on pages 4 to 10 and pages 16
to 20 respectively.

FINAL RESULTS

The final results of the Group for the year are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 62.

DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of HK1.8 cents per ordinary share was paid
to shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) on 18
December 2020. The Board has recommended the payment of
a final dividend of HK5.7 cents per ordinary share for the year
ended 31 December 2020. Together with the interim dividend,
this will bring the total dividend distribution to HK7.5 cents
(2019: HK6.5 cents) per share for the year ended 31 December
2020.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the AGM of the
Company to be held on 8 June 2021, the proposed final dividend
will be paid on or about 6 August 2021 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the
Company on 18 June 2021.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in Note 24(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company had distributable reserves
amounting to RMB567,168,000 (2019: RMB507,313,000).

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENTS - SHARE OPTIONS
GRANTED TO DIRECTORS AND SELECTED
EMPLOYEES

Details of the share options granted in prior years is set out
in Note 24(b) to the consolidated financial statements and
“Share options” section contained in this Directors’ Report. No
shares were issued by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2020.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'S LISTED SEGURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company had not
redeemed and neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
had purchased or sold any of the Company'’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Company'’s articles of association and there was no restriction
against such rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata
basis to existing shareholders.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, restated and reclassified
as appropriate, is set out on page 157. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Apart from those stated in the Chairman’s Statement and
Management Discussion and Analysis sections, the Company is
exposed to the following key risks and uncertainties which are
required to be disclosed pursuant to the Companies Ordinance
(Cap 622 Laws of Hong Kong).

Raw Material Risk

The Group’s business is dependent on the supply and cost of raw
materials and any disruption in the supply or fluctuation in the
prices of such raw materials could materially and adversely affect
the Group's business, results of operations, financial condition
and prospects.

Operational Risk

The Group's production facilities emit pollutants and are subject
to various environmental protection laws and regulations in
China. Any change to, or failure by the Group to comply with,
environmental protection laws or regulations may cause the
Group to incur additional costs and expenses. In addition, if the
production facilities of the Group experience power, steam or
water shortages, the Group’s business and results of operations
may be harmed.

Gredit Risks Relating to Customers

Exposure to bad debts attributable to customers usually
intensifies in a time of weak economic performance. To minimize
credit risks, the management of the Group has appointed
dedicated staff members to handle procedures for determining
credit limits, credit approval and other monitoring procedures,
to ensure follow-up with all receivables in a timely manner.
In addition, the Group reviews the collectability of receivables
at the end of a reporting period, to ensure that sufficient
impairment losses are provided for in respect of uncollectible
monies. Details of the credit risks are set out in Note 3.1(a) to
the consolidated financial statements.

Liquidity RIskS

In managing liquidity risks, the Group monitors and maintains
cash and cash equivalents at a level which is considered by the
management as sufficient, to satisfy the needs arising from the
Group's operations and to mitigate the effect of fluctuations
of cash flow. The management closely monitors the use of
borrowings to ensure that relevant covenants relating to loans
are complied with.
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KEY RISKS AND UNGERTAINTIES (conmnuen)
Currency Risk

The Group has foreign currency transactions and foreign
currency borrowings, which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk. The Group manages and monitors foreign
exchange exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The Group may
enter into several foreign currency forward contracts to mitigate
the risks as necessary. Details of the currency risk are set out in
Note 3.1(d) to the consolidated financial statements.

Interest Rate Risk

The Group also entered some interest rate swap contracts to
manage the floating-rate bank borrowings. It is the Group’s
policy to fix the interest rate for a portion of the bank
borrowings while keeping the interest rate floating for the
remaining portion of bank borrowing floating. The management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider changing the
proportion of the interest rate hedging. Details of the interest
rate risk are set out in Note 3.1(c) to the consolidated financial
statements.

Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group emphasizes in environmental protection during its
production process and adopts various measures to ensure its
duties of protecting the environment. The Group continues to
update the requirements of the relevant environmental laws and
regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. The Group
does not produce material waste nor emit material quantities of
pollutants during its production process. During the year under
review, the Group has complied with the relevant environmental
laws and regulations applicable to it in all material respects,
including waste water emission permit, gas emission permit
and others. The Group has also adopted measures in order to
achieve efficient use of resources, energy saving and waste
reduction. The measures include wastewater and gas emission
managements, noise control, greenhouse gas emission and
resources management.
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KEY RISKS AND UNGERTAINTIES (conmnuen)
compliance With Laws and Regulations

The Group continues to update the requirement of the relevant
laws and regulations in various countries, particularly in the
PRC and Hong Kong, applicable to it to ensure compliance.
Substantially all of the Group’s assets are located in the PRC
and the Group's revenue is mainly derived from operations in
the PRC. The Group was listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong on 9 March 2004. During the year under review, the
Group complied with the relevant laws and regulations in various
countries applicable to it in all material respects.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date
of this report were:

Mr. Yang Yirong, Chairman & President

Ms. Lu Jiahua, executive Director

Mr. Gong Xionghui, executive Director

Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung, executive Director
Mr. Han Huan Guang, executive Director
Mr. Lin Zhigang, executive Director

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen, INED
Prof. Xiang Ming, INED
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John, INED

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management
are set out on pages 21 to 25.

In accordance with article 108(A) of the Company’s articles
of association,Mr. Yang Yirong, Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung and
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen will retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM.

The INEDs were appointed for an initial term of not more than
one year and will be renewable automatically for successive
term of one year until terminated by not less than three months’
notice in writing served by either party on the other.

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming AGM has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received, from each of the INEDs, an annual
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the INEDs are
independent.
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DIRECTORS MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
T0 THE COMPANY'S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the
Company and the Director’s connected party had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 650
employees (2019: 618 employees). Staff costs including
directors’ remuneration for the years ended 31 December 2020
and 31 December 2019 were approximately RMB85.18 million
and approximately RMB76.57 million, respectively. Details of
the emoluments of the Directors and the top five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in Notes 36 and 9(b) to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group has established its human resources policies and
procedures with a view to deploying the incentives and rewards
of the remuneration system. The remuneration package offered
to the staff is appropriate for the duties and in line with the
prevailing market terms. Staff benefits, including medical
coverage and provident funds, are provided to employees.
The Group has also established effective performance
evaluation system in which employees are properly rewarded
on a performance-related basis under the Group’s salary and
bonus system. The Group has adopted a share option scheme
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to the
management, key technician and other eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

PENSION SCHEMES

Details of the pension schemes operated by the Group are set
out in Note 9(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS' INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

As at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors was interested
in any business apart from the business of the Group, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with that of the Group.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group
were entered into or existed during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, every
Director and officer of the Company shall be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company against all costs, charges, expenses,
losses and liabilities which he/she may sustain or incur in or
about the execution or holding of his/her office or otherwise in
relation thereto.

In addition, the Company has taken out and maintained
insurance for the Directors against liabilities to third parties that
may be incurred in the course of performing their duties as at
the date of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The aggregate sales attributable to the Group’s largest and the
five largest customers were 9% and 22 %, respectively. The
aggregate purchases attributable to the Group’s largest and the
five largest suppliers were 9% and 26%, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder of the
Company, which to the knowledge of the Directors owned more
than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and five largest suppliers
noted above.
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020, the interests or short positions of
the Directors in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within
the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO")) which were notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or which were required,
pursuant to the Model Code adopted by the Company contained
in the Listing Rules, to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

(@) Shares (Including underlying shares)

EECERSFLBEBERG Z
B &5
MR2020F12A318 » ARBEZERAR
BEEMER AR (EERE %&B;ﬂlaﬂmu
ERHAE GG ) EXVES) 2 B - HBERG
BEREETR  BAEREESRPERIIEXVIESE
TR8DEE ME RN T MBS AR B
(BREREBEES RAE G 2 ZFEXESFH
VEWR%%%ZF&‘ FAR) » HEZLAR

RIAREBRES MR EGRIIEI2GREEZLE
uEFH%Z’fE SEORAR - HRIE L TR AFrEiE AR

RERN 2 REFRIZEME R AR R RFT 2
BEmSORAB T ¢
(@) B (BEBERD)

Number of shares held
(including underlying shares)

FEROBE (BEEBRS)

% of the issued

Personal Corporate  Underlying share capital

interests interests shares®™ Total HERIT
Name of Directors EEHA B AER EEERE MHER B st BAE D
Mr. Yang Yirong BREEE 10,408,000 283,589,687 646,800 294,644,487 38.02%
Mr. Gong Xionghui BEfENESE A 2,706,000 15,006,315 3,960,000 21,672,315 2.80%
Ms. Lu Jiahua EXELLT 2,046,000 11,254,736 3,960,000 17,260,736 2.23%
Mr. Lin Zhigang WEMELE 2,376,000 — 3,960,000 6,336,000 0.82%
Mr. Han Huan Guang BECLELE 1,584,000 — 3,960,000 5,544,000 0.72%
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ERE2EE 420,000 — 646,800 1,066,800 0.14%
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John & 854 132,000 — 646,800 778,800 0.10%

Notes: Bt 5 -

(i) Mr. Yang Yirong is deemed to be interested in 283,589,687
shares of the Company held by Marietta Limited by virtue of
it being controlled by Mr. Yang Yirong.

(i)  Mr. Gong Xionghui is deemed to be interested in
15,006,315 shares of the Company held by Dragon Kingdom
Investment Limited by virtue of it being controlled by Mr.
Gong Xionghui.

(iii)  Ms. Lu Jiahua is deemed to be interested in 11,254,736

shares of the Company held by Sunwill Investments Limited

by virtue of it being controlled by Ms. Lu Jiahua.

(iv)  Underlying shares comprised the interest in the share

options.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (conminuen)

(D)

underlying Shares — shares 0ptions

Share options, being unlisted physically settled equity
derivatives, to subscribe for the ordinary shares of the
Company were granted to Directors, chief executives,
employees and certain participants pursuant to the share
option schemes approved by shareholders of the Company
at the general meeting held on 28 May 2014. Information
in relation to these share options during the year ended
31 December 2020 are set out in “Share options” section
contained in this Directors’ Report.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year, the
Directors and chief executives (including their spouse and
children under 18 years of age) had any interest in, or
had been granted, or exercised, any rights to subscribe
for shares or warrants or debentures of the Company,
its specified undertakings and its other associated
corporations required to be disclosed pursuant to the SFO
and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622).

Nominees shares of the Company's subsidiaries
held in trust

A Director also hold nominee shares of certain subsidiaries
held in trust for the Group solely for the purpose of
ensuring that the relevant subsidiary has more than one
member.

All the interests stated above represent long positions.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors of the Company had any interests or short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its specified undertakings or its other associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO and the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622)).
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SHARE OPTIONS

Share options are granted to Directors, executives, employees
and business partners at the invitation of the Directors under the
share option scheme (the “Scheme”) approved by shareholders
at general meeting held on 28 May 2014. The Scheme are
designed to motivate executives and key employees and other
persons who make a contribution to the Group and enable the
Group to attract and retain individuals with experience and
ability and to reward them for their past contributions.

The share options were granted at nil consideration. An option
may be accepted by a participant within 21 days from the date
of the offer for the grant of the option and the amount payable
on acceptance of the grant of an option is HK$1.

The exercise price of the granted options is not less than the
highest of: (a) the closing price of the shares on the date of the
grant; (b) the average closing price of the shares for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of the grant; and
(c) the nominal value of the Company’s shares. Each option gives
the holder the right to subscribe for one share of the Company.
Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the
offer for the grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum
period required for the holding of an option before it can be
exercised; the share options have a contractual option term of
10 years.

The Company can issue share options so that the total number
of shares that may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under all the share option schemes does not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the shares in issue on the date of
approval of the share option scheme. The Company may renew
this limit at any time, subject to shareholders’ approval and
the issue of a circular and in accordance with the Listing Rules
provided that the number of shares to be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under all
the share option schemes does not exceed 30% of the shares in
issue from time to time.

As at 31 March 2021, share options to subscribe for a total
of 24,776,400 option shares were still outstanding under the
Scheme which represent approximately 3.2% of the issued
ordinary shares of the Company.

Unless approved by shareholders of the Company, the total
number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of
the options granted to each participant (including both exercised
and outstanding options) under the Scheme or any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company in any 12-month period
must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital.
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SHARE OPTIONS (conmmuen)

An option must be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Scheme at any time during a period to be determined and
notified by the Directors to each grantee, which period may
commence from the date of the offer for the grant of option is
made, but shall end in any event not later than 10 years from
the date on which the offer for the grant of the option is made,
subject to the provisions for early termination thereof.

Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated in the
offer for the grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum
period required under the Scheme for the holding of an option
before it can be exercised.

The Scheme shall be valid and effective for a period of 10 years
commencing from the approval of the Scheme after which no
option can be granted under the Scheme. However, options that
remain outstanding as at 27 May 2024 can be exercised until

their respective expiry dates.

The following table discloses details of share options
outstanding as at 31 December 2020 under the Scheme and the
movements during the year.
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At At

Exercise 1 January Exercised 31 December

pricc  Date of 2020 during 2020

T#E  grant Exercisable period #2020% the year #2020%

Type of Grantee ARAEH HKS Bx  RERH e 1518 ERITHE 12A318

Category 1 - Directors BA1-E8

Mr. Yang Yirong BRELE 170 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 646,800 - 646,800

Ms. Lu Jiahua EXERT 1.70 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,960,000 - 3,960,000

Mr. Gong Xionghui EERE 1.70 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,960,000 - 3,960,000

Mr. Han Huan Guang BELEE 170 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,960,000 - 3,960,000

Mr. Lin Zhigang HERIEE 170 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,960,000 = 3,960,000

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen ERE2RE 1.70 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 646,800 - 646,800

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John BERLE 1.70 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 646,800 = 646,800

Sub-total NGt 17,780,400 - 17,780,400
Category 2 - Bhl2-

Employees under continuous SEER

employment contract £HES 1.70 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,036,000 - 3,036,000
Category 3 - BR3-

Consultants BR 1.70 1.12.2014 1.12.2014-30.11.2024 3,960,000 - 3,960,000

Total by 24,776,400 = 24,776,400
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS® INTERESTS IN THE
SHARES

So far as is known to any Director or chief executive of the
Company, as at 31 December 2020, shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO,
or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

Long positions in shares

FTERRZROER

RARBEMNEEHESTRABMA - R
2020512 A31H © WAL &7 sk 8 B AR {9
hEARIEE S A EROIEXVEEE2R3DH
BXARARRREZEBEIXR - HERLA
ARARARERFRPEGRIIEIB6EFELZ
BLMzBEZIARZIBER(ARAESTHIR
BITBRABKRINMT

it 2 2 B

Number of shares held

FrisiR 8B
Beneficial Corporate Investment Shareholding
Name owner interests manager Total percentage
£ BREEA HEER RELHE Aot BREDL
Marietta Limited 283,589,687" - - 283,589,687 36.59%
FMR LLC - - 69,367,280 69,367,280 8.95%
Guan Nian Trading Limited 58,500,000 - - 58,500,000 7.55%
Kwok Ying Lan - 58,500,000 - 58,500,000 7.55%
HRFH
Ophorst Van Marwijk Kooy
Vermogensbeheer N.V. - - 40,000,120 40,000,120 5.16%
Notes: BT

(i) These shares were registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Marietta Limited, the entire issued share capital of
which was directly and beneficially owned by Mr. Yang Yirong.

(i) These shares were registered in the name of and beneficially
owned by Guan Nian Trading Limited, the entire issued share
capital of which was directly and beneficially owned by Ms. Kwok
Ying Lan.

Other than as disclosed above, the Company has not been
notified by any persons, other than the Directors and chief
executives of the Company, who had interest or short positions
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as at 31
December 2020.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

A summary of the related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2020 is disclosed in
Note 35 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there were no transactions which need
to be disclose as connected transactions in accordance with the
requirements of the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with
most of the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2020, save for the deviations from Code Provision A.2.1 of the
CG Code. Information on the deviations and further information
on the Company’s corporate governance Code is set out in the
“Corporate Governance Report” as set out on pages 26 to 39.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to and within
the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there is
sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s
issued shares at 31 March 2021.

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

Save as disclosed in Note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements and up to the date of this report, there was
no significant event relevant to the business or financial
performance of the Group that come to the attention of the
Directors after the year ended 31 December 2020.
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SRS

AUDITOR

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers who retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment.

On behalf of the Directors
Yang Yirong
Chairman & President

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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ndependent Auditors Report

o
pwec

To the Shareholders of EcoGreen International Group Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION
What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of EcoGreen International
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 62 to 156, which comprise:

. the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2020;

J the consolidated income statement for the year then
ended;

o the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for
the year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended;

o the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then
ended; and

o the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which
include a summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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: PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com
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Independent Auditor's Report
8 M 1% B

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as
follows:

o Net realisable value of inventories

o Impairment of intangible assets

(i) Netrealisable value of inventories

Refer to Note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements

At 31 December 2020, inventories of the Group amounted to
RMB251.5 million. As described in the accounting policies in
Note 2.10 to the consolidated financial statements, inventories
are carried at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
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Management applied judgment in determining the net
realisable value for inventories. Net realisable value is
determined based upon a detailed analysis of inventories
aging on a product by product basis, with reference to
the current marketability and latest invoice prices of
the respective finished goods and the current market
conditions existing at the end of the reporting period.
Inventories have been written down by RMB6.4 million to
reduce the carrying value of certain inventories to their
estimated net realisable value as at 31 December 2020.

We focused on this area due to the size of the balances and
the judgment involved by management in determining the
net realisable value of the inventories.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter:

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
net realisable value of inventories included:

o Understood and evaluated the management’s internal
control and assessment process in estimating the level
of provision for inventories and assessed the inherent
risk of material misstatement by considering the
degree of estimation uncertainty and level of other
inherent risk factors.

o Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment
of net realisable value of inventories to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process
by comparing the historical accuracy of inventory
provisioning, on a sample basis, to the realised
amount; and reviewing the level of inventories write-
offs during the year in relation to inventories loss.

o Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
inventories aging used by management to estimate
the appropriate provision for slow moving and
obsolete inventories.

o Performed audit analytics on inventories holding and
movement data to identify inventories with indication
of slow moving or obsolescence.
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o Checked the utilisation of inventories by production
subsequent to the year, on a sample basis, for the
appropriateness of the associated provision made.

o Compared the carrying amounts, on a sample
basis, of inventories to their net realisable value
through a review of sales subsequent to the year
end to check for completeness of the associated
provision. Where there are no subsequent sales of the
respective products after the year end, we challenged
management as to the realisable value of the
products, corroborating explanations with the aging,
sales orders, historical margins and marketability of
the respective inventories, as appropriate.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
assumptions of management in relation to the assessment of
the net realisable value of inventories to be supportable by
available evidence.

Impairment of intangible assets

Refer to Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements

As at 31 December 2020, carrying amount of the Group’s
intangible assets amounted to RMB281.8 million. As
described in the accounting policies in Note 2.7 to the
consolidated financial statements, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment.

The Group’s intangible assets represent development costs
incurred on the designing, constructing and testing for
new or improved products and processes of production.
Management judgment is required in identifying whether
there are indicators that intangible assets are impaired;
and in the determination of their recoverable amounts,
which is primarily based on the expectation of future sales
of the relevant underlying products and the current market
conditions. Accumulated impairment charge of RMB24.5
million has been recorded to reduce the carrying amounts
of certain intangible assets to their recoverable amounts as
at 31 December 2020.
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We focused on this area due to the size of the balances and
the judgment involved by management in determining the
recoverable amounts of the intangible assets.

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter:

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment on intangible assets included:

o Understood and evaluated the management’s
internal control and assessment process in identifying
impairment indicators and estimating such
impairment provision and assessed the inherent risk
of material misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent risk
factors.

o Evaluated the outcome of prior period assessment
of impairment of intangible assets to assess the
effectiveness of management’s estimation process by
comparing the historical accuracy of the respective
products’ forecasted sales and gross margin prepared
by management in prior year, on a sample basis, to
their actual performance during the year.

o Checked the accuracy of the carrying amount of each
intangible asset against the books and records.

o Compared the forecasted sales and gross margin
prepared by management for the respective products
against their historical performance, production plans
and confirmed sales orders, where relevant.

o Where historical pattern was not demonstrated by
those newer products, we challenge management
as to their sales projections including pricing,
corroborating explanations with the price of similar
products in the market and sales quotations, where
available, and the underlying marketability study
documentation.

Based on the procedures performed, we found the
assumptions of management in relation to impairment
assessment of intangible assets to be supportable by
available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises all of the
information included in the annual report other than the
consolidated financial statements and our auditor’'s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements that give a true and
fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
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In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to
going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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Independent Auditor
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78 3% BN &

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We
remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence, and where applicable, actions taken to
eliminate threats or safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mak Tze Leung, William.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 31 March 2021
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bonsolidated Income statement - oy Function of Expense

B A ER —neanmesRm

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020% 12 A31HILF/E

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B & AR TR AREFTT
Revenue WA 5 2,510,021 2,422,810
Cost of sales SHER A 8 (1,939,502) (1,902,882)
Gross profit EF 570,519 519,928
Other (losses)/income, net HEi(EE) WA —E5E 6 (11,044) (7,878)
Selling and marketing costs SHE R THIRHE E KA 8 (37,618) (35,442)
Administrative expenses THER 8 (112,032) (109,072)
Net loss allowance on CRMEEBERHTER
financial assets 20 (188) (462)
Operating profit RS F 409,637 367,074
Net finance income/(expenses) Bl (BA)FE 7 100,957 (42,254)
Share of profit of an associate FE(EEE & R D EE 11 604 1,638
Profit before taxation KR %% A0 7 511,198 326,458
Taxation pi=pi] 12 (102,773) (97,418)
Profit for the year FEFNH 408,425 229,040
Profit/(loss) attributable to: AE/(ER)EER
Owners of the Company RARHERE 408,404 229,949
Non-controlling interests FEE AR RS 21 (909)
408,425 229,040

Earnings per share attributable to
owners of the Company for the
year (expressed in RMB per share)

— Basic
- Diluted

FESRKDEE
REARBHEEE
(BBRIAARKTITR)

—&R
-8

13 52.69 Cents?
13 52.69 Cents®

29.67 Cents%
29.67 Centsm

The above consolidated income statement should be read in & 0F 7158 7% & 2P 55 — OF G 3E -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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bonsolidated statement of Gomprehensive INcome
e e e

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31HILF/E

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B & AR®T ARBTTT
Profit for the year FEAME 408,425 229,040
Other comprehensive loss: HMhiRa Bk
Item that may be reclassified to HBrgemEsinEs
profit or loss BmIEE
Currency translation differences  SMNEITE =58 (338) 9
Other comprehensive loss FEEMGAIBRERE
for the year (338) 9
Total comprehensive income FEGRE W= B
for the year 408,087 229,031
Total comprehensive rE e (E18) e
income/(loss) attributable to: EER
Owners of the Company RNABEEE 408,066 229,940
Non-controlling interests FEPEAR M M 2 21 (909)
408,087 229,031
The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income bt & 4R A Wak sk e B f 5 — GF R0 8

should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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bonsolidated balance sheel

EHEERABR

As at 31 December 2020 72020412 H31H

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5E AR®T T AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - MR NERE 16 1,784,941 1,317,753
Right-of-use assets EREEE 15 45,257 43,677
Intangible assets mpAE 17 281,784 192,614
Investment in an associate B 2 E 1" 10,938 10,334
Deferred income tax assets BEFSHEE 29 5,131 4,907
Financial assets at fair value BAREBEFARLAM
through other comprehensive FealnzeRmEE
income 18 200 200
Prepayments TE R 21 29,379 32,116
2,157,630 1,601,601
Current assets REEE
Inventories T8 22 251,545 196,601
Trade receivables and bills JE U BR 7k % JE U 2 4%
receivable 20 1,028,045 999,379
Prepayments and other T8 < 2R % L E U R
receivables 21 406,043 329,076
Amounts due from related JiE s A sk 5 7R
companies 35 686 39
Derivative financial instruments TESMIT A 19 1,177 276
Financial assets at fair value EARBEFAEBERZ
through profit or loss CRIEE 18 30,001 =
Pledged bank deposits B ZRITFER 23 88,483 85,664
Short-term bank deposits HHIRITHER 23 - 513,734
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEFED 23 1,460,152 958,126
3,266,132 3,082,895
Total assets WEE 5,423,762 4,684,496
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES ERRAM
Equity attributable to owners HEZXEBRALATNEEE
of the Company
Share capital [N 24 75,380 75,380
Share premium A% AR5 (B 24 341,876 341,876
Other reserves HAib G 25 156,537 156,003
Retained earnings {RE & F 2,079,427 1,718,479
2,653,220 2,291,738
Non-controlling interests FEERMER 4,077 4,056
Total equity e 2,657,297 2,295,794
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
AHEERAER

As at 31 December 2020 72020412 831H

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR® T AREEFIT
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities FREBEARE
Borrowings BE 28 1,376,402 546,590
Lease liabilities HEBRE 15 5,155 1,685
Deferred income tax liabilities BIEFEHEE 29 100,250 89,250
1,481,807 637,525
Current liabilities i p=R =
Trade payables and bills payable  FEfTBR K BT Z iR 26 324,390 322,922
Current income tax liabilities BNEAFTIS B & 26,353 23,248
Borrowings (=i 28 860,519 1,351,189
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 2,509 3,546
Derivative financial instruments TESMIA 19 3,380 1,172
Amount due to a related company FE1{fBaEE 75 2B 35 - 2,309
Accruals and other payables et & A & E 4th B R 27 67,507 46,765
Amount due to a director R —EEFIAE 35 - 26
1,284,658 1,751,177
Total liabilities B E 2,766,465 2,388,702
Total equity and liabilities HERNEE 5,423,762 4,684,496

The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in it EEGRBEEREN T —4REE -
conjunction with the accompanying notes.

The consolidated financial statements on pages 62 to 156 were  £62Z= 156 E A M B HE D ML 20214E3 8
approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2021 and were 31HBES X  THESFSREES -
signed on its behalf.

YANG YIRONG LU JIAHUA
RS EXRE
Chairman Executive director
FE HITEE
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AHEREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020% 12 A31HILF/E

Attributable to owners of the Company

BERAATERE
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
capital ~ premium reserves  earnings Total interests equity
Bx BraE Hit Gt REEA A FBRREER L 35

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR  ARMTR ARBTR  ARETR ARMTR ARETR  ARETR

Balance at 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1R 248 75,380 341,876 155,470 1,523,113 2,095,839 - 2,095,839
Comprehensive income/(loss) Geks/ (BR)
Profit for the year EEHE - - - 229,949 229,949 (909) 229,040
Other comprehensive loss Rtk
Currency translation differences NEEEE = = 9) = ) - 9)
Total comprehensive incomef{oss) 2019558 E/(58)

for 2019 &R = = 9) 229,949 229940 (909) 229,031
Transactions with owners HERFAENEMEEN

in their capacity as owners SRERNRS
Change in ownership interests in RWER R ERERR

subsidiaries without change of control ~ 2BfiE#IERE - - - 5,035 5,035 4,965 10,000
2018 final dividend 0185 2Kk E = = = (27,183) (27,183) = (27,183)
2019 interim dividend 0195 2R HRE = = = (11,893) (11,893) - (11,893)
Transfer from retained earnings (Note 25) (22 &f|& (z25) - - 542 (542) - - -
Total transactions with owners EREFEENAREEN

in their capacity as owners SHETRANER - - 542 (34,583) (34,041) 4,965 (29,076)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R2019512A318

pii 75,380 341,876 156,003 1,718,479 2,291,738 4,056 2,295,794

Balance at 1 January 2020 R2020F1518 248 75,380 341,876 156,003 1718479 2,291,738 4,056 2,295,79
Comprehensive income GakE
Profit for the year EEFIE - - - 408,404 408,404 2 408,425
Other comprehensive loss EpGAEA
Currency translation differences NEREER - - (338) - (338) - (338)
Total comprehensive (losses)income 2005654 (BE)/ haag

for 2020 - - (338) 408,404 408,066 21 408,087
Transactions with owners HREFEENAREEN

in their capacity as owners SRETHRS
2019 final dividend 019F 2 "BRE - - - (33,992) (33,992) - (33.99)
2020 interim dividend 200527 55%8 - - - (12,59) (12,592) - (12,59)
Transfer from retained earnings (Note 25) (22 &f|&& (:25) - - 8n (872) - - -
Total transactions with owners BREAEENAREEN

in their capacity as owners SHETRSNAE - - 8n (47,456) (46,584) - (46,584)
Balance at 31 December 2020 #20208128318

A3 75,380 341,876 156,537 2,019427 2,653,220 4077 2,657,007

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should it & GfREss S Bk B B ff s — G EIFE o
be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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bonsolidated otatement of Gash FIOWS

aEHETRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 & Z2020F 12 A31HILF/E

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
ihg=a AR¥T R ARET T
Cash flows from operating RETHNHESRE
activities
Cash generated from operations &E&EEKMENRE 31(a) 318,222 420,095
Interest paid B 15 & (85,762) (95,054)
Income tax paid EAfTFTE R (88,892) (87,691)
Net cash generated from 48 R R B IEIH & R
operating activities 143,568 237,350
Cash flows from investing BETHNEESRE
activities
Additions to property, plant and ¥ - &&= KR EE N
equipment (410,768) (390,722)
Additions to intangible assets A EE (114,985) (54,534)
Placement of structured bank B B &R RITER
deposits (1,375,000) (1,204,000)
Redemption of structured bank  BEEI&A#EERITFR
deposits 1,878,000 1,299,000
Decrease in other short-term S/ (B8 h0) 58 BRER TR 2k
bank deposits 10,734 20,916
Increase in pledged bank deposits B i # R 1T7F 2% 1% 10 (2,819) (19,574)
Additions to financial assets at  EARBEE ABZEZ
fair value through profit or loss & &b& 2 i1 (30,001) -
Interest received BUF B 50,848 42,327
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEW%¥ - HE LR IEGFTEHE
plant and equipment - 2,993
Repayment from loan to an B HEEES
associate - 3,000
Net cash generated from/(used in) & &8, (FrA)E L F5E
investing activities 6,009 (300,594)
Cash flows from financing RMETBNESRE
activities
Proceeds from borrowings BEEmER 31(b) 2,511,751 1,803,309
Repayments of borrowings BEEE 31(b) (2,108,733) (1,647,124)
Decrease in amount due to a director & —& E XA R 31(b) (26) (4)
Dividends paid BE B 3 f~f (46,584) (39,076)
Payments for lease liabilities XNEEEE(ERR)
(including interest) 31(b) (3,623) (3,629)
Consideration received from U ERIEFE AR i s 2 (B
non-controlling interests 10(j) - 10,000
Net cash generated from BB EHFAEBIRG 5
financing activities 352,785 123,476
Net increase in BERRESEYEMEEHE
cash and cash equivalents 502,362 60,232
Cash and cash equivalents FEY 7S RIBESEEY
at beginning of the year 958,126 897,903
Exchange losses on cash and RekREZEMEREBLX
cash equivalents (336) (9)
Cash and cash equivalents FRZEASRBAEEEY
at end of the year 23 1,460,152 958,126

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read it AHE LR EREEN T —HRIE -

in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes [0 the Consolidated Financlal statements

BB HRR W

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

EcoGreen International Group Limited (“Ecogreen” or “the
Company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the Group”)
are principally engaged in the production and trading of
fine chemicals from natural resources for use in aroma
chemicals and pharmaceutical products.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 3
March 2003 as an exempted company with limited liability
under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands. The
address of its registered office is Cricket Square, Hutchins
Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman KY1-111, Cayman
Islands.

The Company’s head office and principal place of business
in Hong Kong is situated at Suite 5301, 53rd Floor, Central
Plaza, 18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in
Chinese Renminbi (“RMB"), unless otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

2.1.1 Compliance with HKFRS and HKCO

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS(s)”) and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance ("HKCO") Cap. 622.

2.1.2 Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets
and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments)
which are measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Gonsalidated Financial Statements
& o B 75 R I ot

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. TEETHHERBEw

pULIGIES (CONTINUED)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 BRAEEE (4m)

2.1.3 New and amended standards adopted by the 2.1.3 RNEBBRAN 2 5] RGBT ER

Group

The Group has applied the following standards and
amendments for the first time for the annual reporting
period commencing 1 January 2020:

HKAS 1 and
HKAS 8 (Amendments)

HKAS 39, HKFRS 7 and
HKFRS 9 (Amendments)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)

Conceptual Framework for
Financial Reporting 2018

Definition of Material

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform
Definition of a Business

Revise Conceptual
Framework for Financial

Reporting

The Group also elected to early adopt the following

amendments:

HKFRS 16 (Amendments) Covid-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The Group has assessed the impact of the adoption of
these amended standards and considered that there was
no significant impact on the Group’s results and financial
position, except the HKFRS 16 (Amendments) set out
above.

2.1.4 New standards and interpretations not yet

adopted

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December
2020 reporting periods and have not been early adopted
by the Group. These standards are not expected to have
a material impact on the Group in the current or future
reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.

AREBEDTN2020F1 A1 BHBNEER
LHIMBE XA T ER RERTA ¢

(BREFHERDEIRE BELES
(BREGHER)H8H

(&5T)

(BEGHERDFE3R - MREERE
(BEFBENFETHRK
(BEUBER)D

EELACCTD)

(BBMBER FE3% LEIZEER

(&5T)

PBREMSAER2018  KIEFTHBR
SHSAER

AEBEERPRMATINER

(EBHBER) 2019 MRmE
1658 (£7]) RARREZ
HeEE

AEBEFERMAZFEETENR
TE  BRLEC(EBWBELERDE 165 (&
N RBEREAREZ REARWE
ARG BERZE -

2.1.4 & RERAN 2 F T R R 2 18

BETHEI ST REED BMEILR
$2020F 12 31 8 Z 74 HAME o8 $ £ 3k
B AR E IR T A - TEATE L AR
REASIARBEHE T SHEAER R
HAIBR AR BERNEATE -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

21 BaSiS U]( UrBDara[i[]ﬂ (continued)

2.1.5 Changes in accounting policies

10

The Group has early adopted HKFRS 16 (Amendments)
“Covid-19 — Related Rent Concessions” retrospectively
from 1 January 2020. The amendment provides an optional
practical expedient allowing lessees to elect not to assess
whether a rent concession related to COVID-19 is a lease
modification. Lessees adopting this election may account
for qualifying rent concessions in the same way as they
would if they were not lease modifications. The practical
expedient only applies to rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic and only
if all of the following conditions are met: (a) the change
in lease payments results in revised consideration for the
lease that is substantially the same as, or less than, the
consideration for the lease immediately preceding the
change; (b) any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments due on or before 30 June 2021; and (c) there is
no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the
lease.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all
qualifying COVID-19 - related rent concessions. Rent
concessions totalling RMB322,000 have been accounted
for as negative variable lease payments and recognised in
the consolidated income statement for the year ended 31
December 2020, with a corresponding adjustment to the
lease liability. There is no impact on the opening balance of
Group's equity at 1 January 2020.

EcoGreen International Group Limited | A5 EIfR & EHR A A

2.

2]

FTEEHBERBE

i

I

REEE )

2158 BEREE

ANEBEE H202051 A1 BiRiR R8P
MCEBTBREER)F165(1BF]) —
2019 BRI S RABA B ESR - ZIE
FIIRE T B ENEEREESE o
FFATAREHE2019T MBS RAEMA
CEESTBHEEBI N M - Wik
FBHEEEE]  RAZRENABAR
ZHERFREEERASCERAKR - &
BB AEBARAR2019EMRA
SREBNEEYEREEREUATA
BEBRENBATEENTHEESER  (af
ENFEHEFHENNKEL] B
% 12 8 B M9 A8 & KB A BUE R R R #%
KE: OBEEMFKOEAREZER
20216 A30B s 2RI B BAMI T 30 &
()78 B A L b 158 3% R A6 14 I 4 B B M A
@Jo

REEERBE A EK2019TMRESHE
HRESESREAERERS % - 82
200F 12 A3 B IEFE - FAEARE
322,000t ERFT ABZHHEEN
FoWHEEHEGRERERPHER - WAE
JERARTHESRE - AHAEEMN2020
F1AVBR RS SR BT AE -



2.2

221

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

supsidiaries

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred
to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred
asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform
with the Group’s accounting policies.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
income statement, statement of comprehensive income,
statement of changes in equity and balance sheet
respectively.

Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account
for all business combinations, regardless of whether equity
instruments or other assets are acquired. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary comprises
the:

. fair values of the assets transferred

. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business

o equity interests issued by the Group

o fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement, and

o fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
& F B 75 ¥k B At

2.2

221

/2

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

SUDSIUIHHBS (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
Business combinations (continued)

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
and the acquisition date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity over the fair value of the
identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill.
If these amounts are less than the fair value of the net
identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference
is recognised directly in the consolidated income statement
as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is
deferred, the amounts payable in the future are discounted
to their present value as at the date of exchange. The
discount rate used is the entity’s incremental borrowing
rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing could be
obtained from an independent financier under comparable
terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is classified
either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s previously
held equity interest in the acquiree is re-measured to fair
value at the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

SUDSIUIHHBS (continued)

Consolidation (continued)
Changes in ownership interests

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling
interests that do not result in a loss of control as
transactions with equity owners of the Group. A change in
ownership interest results in an adjustment between the
carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling
interests to reflect their relative interests in the subsidiary.
Any difference between the amount of the adjustment to
non-controlling interests and any consideration paid or
received is recognised in equity.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint
control or significant influence, any retained interest in
the entity is remeasured to its fair value with the change
in carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair
value becomes the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an
associate, joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted for as if
the Group had directly disposed of the related assets
or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified
to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate
is reduced but joint control or significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group has
significant influence but not control or joint control. This
is generally the case where the Group holds between 20%
and 50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates are
accounted for using the equity method of accounting after
initially being recognised at cost. Under the equity method
of accounting, the investments are initially recognised at
cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the associate
in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements in
other comprehensive income of the associate in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable
from associates are recognised as a reduction in the
carrying amount of the investment.

Where the Group's share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other
unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations
or made payments on behalf of the associate.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of equity-accounted investees have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

The carrying amount of an associate is tested for impairment
in accordance with the policy described in Note 2.8.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been
identified as the executive Directors.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Foreign currency translation

2.5.1 Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Chinese Renminbi (“RMB"),
which is the Company’s functional and the Group’s
presentation currency.

2.5.2 Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates at the dates
of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and
from the translation of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange
rates are generally recognised in profit or loss. They are
deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying cash flow
hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or are
attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign
operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the consolidated income statement, within “finance
expenses”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated income statement on a net
basis within “other (losses)/income, net’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined. Translation
differences on assets and liabilities carried at fair value are
reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets and
liabilities such as equities held at fair value through profit
or loss ("FVPL") are recognised in profit or loss as part
of the fair value gain or loss and translation differences
on non-monetary assets such as equities classified as fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currency translation (continued)

2.5.3 Group companies

2.6

2.6.1

16

The results and financial position of foreign operation
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented
are translated at the closing rate at the date of that
balance sheet;

income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the transactions); and
(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as assets and
liabilities of the foreign operation and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Construction-in-progress

Construction-in-progress, representing buildings on
which construction work has not been completed and
machinery pending installation, is stated at historical cost,
which includes construction expenditures incurred, cost
of machinery, and other direct costs capitalised during
the construction and installation period, less accumulated
impairment losses, if any. No depreciation is provided in
respect of construction-in-progress until the construction
and installation work is completed. On completion, the
construction-in-progress is transferred to appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment.

REEBRAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Other property, plant and equipment

Other property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also
include transfers from equity of any gains or losses on
qualifying cash flow hedges of foreign currency purchases
of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are expensed in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they
are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings

Plant and machinery

Leasehold improvements
Office furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

30 to 40 years
5 to 15 years
5 to 10 years
5 to 10 years
5 to 10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period. An asset’s carrying amount is written down
immediately to its recoverable amount if the asset’s
carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount (Note 2.8). Gains and losses on disposals are
determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount
and are recognised within “other (losses)/income” in the
consolidated income statement.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pULIGIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Intanginle assets

2.7.1 Research and development

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new or improved products) are
recognised as intangible assets when the following criteria

are fulfilled:

(a) it is technically feasible to complete the intangible

asset so that it will be available for use or sale;

(b) management intends to complete the intangible asset

and use or sell it;

(c) there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will

generate probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the

intangible asset are available; and

(f)  the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset

during its development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense are

not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over a period of 5

years.
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2.8

29

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life or not yet ready
for use are not subject to amortisation and are at least
tested annually for impairment or more frequently if events
or changes in circumstances indicate that they might be
impaired. Assets are tested for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than
goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.9.1 Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value
(either through other comprehensive income (“OCI")
or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model
for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms
of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments
in equity instruments that are not held for trading, this will
depend on whether the Group has made an irrevocable
election at the time of initial recognition to account for the
equity investment at FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only
when its business model for managing those assets
changes.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

29 HnaﬂUia| E]SSBIS (continued)

2.9.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from
the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership.

2.9.3 Measurement

80

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset
at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not
at FVPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit or
loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered
in their entirety when determining whether their cash flows
are solely payment of principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies its
debt instruments:

° Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income from
these financial assets is included in finance income
using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or
loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in
profit or loss and presented in ‘other (losses)/income,
net’ together with foreign exchange gains and losses.
Impairment losses are presented as separate line item
in the consolidated income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

29 Hnﬂﬂ@i&” aSSBIS (continued)

2.9.3 Measurement (continued)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in “other losses,
net’. Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective interest
rate method. Foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in ‘other (losses)/income, net” and
impairment expenses are presented as separate line
item in the consolidated income statement.

FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. A
gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVPL is recognised in profit or loss and
presented net within ‘other (losses)/income, net” in
the period in which it arises.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as
other income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in ‘other (losses)/income, net’ in the
consolidated income statement as applicable. Impairment
losses (and reversal of impairment losses) on equity
investments measured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.
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2.

2.9

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

HnaﬂUia| E]SSBIS (continued)

2.9.4 Impairment

295

2.9.6

82

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its debt instruments
carried at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires expected
lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the receivables, see Note 20 for further details.

For other financial assets at amortised cost, the expected
credit loss is based on the 12-month expected credit
loss. It is the portion of lifetime expected credit loss that
results from default events on a financial instrument that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.
However, when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime expected credit loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the balance sheet where the Group
currently has a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously. The legally enforceable right must not
be contingent on future events and must be enforceable
in the normal course of business and in the event of
default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the company or the
counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are initially measured at
fair value on the date the derivative contracts are entered
into and are subsequently remeasured to their fair values
at the end of each reporting period. The accounting for
subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the
derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so,
the nature of the item being hedged.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had not designated
any derivatives as hedging instruments. Changes in
fair values of derivatives that do not qualify for hedge
accounting are being included in the consolidated income
statement as ‘other losses, net’.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. The cost of finished goods and work
in progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the
ordinary course of business, less applicable variable selling
expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. If collection of trade and other
receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified
as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current
assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective to collect the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. See
Note 2.9.3 for further information about the Group'’s
accounting for trade receivables and Note 2.9.4 for a
description of the Group’s impairment policies.

212 Gash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks and
other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less.

2.13 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or share options are shown in equity as a deduction,
net of tax, from the proceeds.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

214 Trade payables

Trade payables represent liabilities for goods or services
provided to the Group prior to the end of financial year
which are unpaid. Trade payable are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after
the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

215 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in the consolidated income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method. Fees paid on the establishment of loan
facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to
the extent that it is probable that some or all of the facility
will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

2.16 Borrawing costs

84

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying
assets are capitalised during the period of time is required
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or
sale. Qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily
take a substantial period of time to get ready for their
intended use or sale. Borrowing costs are added to the
cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are
substantially ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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2.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

217 Gurrent and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities
attributable to temporary differences and to unused tax
losses.

2.17.1 Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries and associates operate and generate
taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

2.17.2Deferred income tax

(a)

Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided in full using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by
the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.

Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements, except
for deferred income tax liability where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary difference is controlled by the
Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the
Group is unable to control the reversal of the temporary
difference for associates. Only where there is an agreement
in place that gives the Group the ability to control the
reversal of the temporary difference not recognised.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

211

pUI.IGIES (CONTINUED)
Current and deferred incoMe tax (continued)

2.17.2Deferred income tax (continued)

(b)

Outside basis differences (continued)

Deferred income tax assets are recognised on deductible
temporary differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements only to the
extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the future and there is sufficient taxable profit
available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

2.17.3 Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
income tax assets and liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable
entity or different taxable entities where there is an
intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

2.18 Employee benefits

2.18.1Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the
estimated liability for annual leave as a result of services
rendered by employees up to the balance sheet date.
Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of the leave.

2182 Termination benefits

86

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement
date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary
redundancy in exchange for these benefits. The Group
recognises termination benefits at the earlier of the
following dates: (a) when the Group can no longer
withdraw the offer of those benefits; and (b) when the
entity recognises costs for a restructuring that is within the
scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees expected to
accept the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12 months
after the end of the reporting period are discounted to
their present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

218 EmDIUyE}B DBHBTI[S (continued)

2183 Share-based compensation

(a)

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (share options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the grant
of the share options is recognised as an expense. The total
amount to be expensed is determined by reference to the
fair value of the share options granted:

o including any market performance conditions (for
example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to save
or holding shares for a specified period of time).

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. In addition,
in some circumstances employees may provide services in
advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date
fair value is estimated for the purposes of recognising the
expense during the period between service commencement
period and grant date. At the end of each reporting period,
the Group revises its estimates of the number of options
that are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises the
impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
consolidated income statement, with a corresponding
adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(and share premium).
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NOtes to the Consolidated Financial statements

2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pULIGIES (CONTINUED)

218 EmDIUVBB DBHBTI[S (continued)

2183 Share-based compensation (continued)

(b)

Share-based payment transactions among group
entities

The grant by the Company of share options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The fair
value of employee services received, measured by reference
to the grant date fair value, is recognised over the
vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the
parent entity accounts.

2.184 Pension obligations

The Group operates various defined contribution plans. The
plans are generally funded through payments to trustee-
administered funds.

A defined contribution plan is a pension plan under
which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations
to pay further contributions if the fund does not hold
sufficient assets to pay all employees the benefits relating
to employee service in the current and prior periods.
The Group pays contributions to publicly or privately
administered pension insurance plans on a mandatory,
contractual or voluntary basis. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been
paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit
expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

2.19 Provisions

88

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events;
it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation; and the amount has been reliably
estimated.
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Notes

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

pULIGIES (CONTINUED)

219 PFUVISIUHS (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the present obligation at the end of
the reporting period. The discount rate used to determine
the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

2.20Revenue recognition

Sales of goods

The Group is principally engaged in the production and
trading of fine chemicals from natural resources for use
in aroma chemicals and pharmaceutical products. Sales
are recognised when control of the products has been
transferred, being when the products are delivered to
the customer, and there is no unfulfilled obligation that
could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specified location, the risks of obsolescence and loss
have been transferred to the customer, and either the
customer has accepted the products in accordance with
the sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed,
or the Group has objective evidence that all criteria for
acceptance have been satisfied.

Revenue from these sales is recognised based on the price
specified in the contract, net of discounts, returns and
value added taxes.

A receivable is recognised when the products are delivered,
as this is the point in time that the consideration is
unconditional because only the passage of time is required
before the payment is due. Substantially all of the Group's
revenue are recognised at a point in time during the year.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
IR Rk

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

2.21Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest

method.

2.22Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will
be received and the Group will comply with all attached

conditions.

2.2318ases

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset

is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based on
their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases for
real estate for which the Group is lessee, it has elected not
to separate lease and non-lease components and instead

accounts for these as a single lease component.

Asset and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

o Fixed payments (including in-substance fixed

payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o Variable lease payment that are based on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at

commencement date;

o Amounts expected to be payable by the Group under

residual value guarantees;

o The exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

3 Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising that option.
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Notes

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

pULIGIES (CONTINUED)

Z.ZSLBBSBS (continued)

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of
similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic
environment with similar terms, security and conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o Where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received;

o Uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for lease held by
the Group, which does not have recent third party
financing; and

o Makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
pULIGIES (CONTINUED)

228 LeaSBS (continued)

92

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability for
each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

. The amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o Any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

o Any initial direct costs; and
° Restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use assets is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases of warehouses
and staff quarters and all leases of low-value assets are
recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit
or loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less. Low-value assets comprise staff quarters.
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Notes

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

pUl.IGIES (CONTINUED)

2.24Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,
as appropriate.

2 26 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability
is initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of:

o the amount determined in accordance with the
expected credit loss model under HKFRS 9 ‘Financial
Instruments’ and

o the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of HKFRS
15 ‘Revenue from Contracts with Customers’.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined
based on the present value of the difference in cash
flows between the contractual payments required under
the debt instrument and the payments that would be
required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the
obligations.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
& F B 75 ¥k B At

(a)

94

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group’s financial assets include cash and cash
equivalents, bank deposits, trade and other receivables,
amounts due from a related companies, FVPL, FVOCI and
derivative financial instruments. The Group’s financial
liabilities include borrowings, trade and other payables,
amount due to a related company, amount due to a
director, derivative financial instruments and lease
liabilities.

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: market risk (including foreign exchange risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate risk and price
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain
risk exposure, The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below.

Credit risk

The Group has policies in place to ensure that liquid funds
are placed with financial institutions registered with sound
credit standing in Mainland China and Hong Kong. Sales
of products are made to customers with appropriate credit
history. The Group performs credit evaluations on its
customers.

Trade receivables are due within three months from
the date of billing. For certain customers with good
credit history, an extended period of up to 180 days is
allowed. As at 31 December 2020, 61% of the total trade
receivables were due within three months (2019: 58%).

As at 31 December 2020, the five largest customers
accounted for approximately 19% of the trade receivable
carrying amount (2019: 18%). The Group considers the
largest customers are financially healthy with no significant
credit risk.

The maximum exposure to credit risk represents the
carrying amounts of trade receivables in the balance sheet.
Quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group's exposure
to credit risk arising from trade receivables are set out in
Note 20.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics. The
Group has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk and
expected credit loss. Available reasonable and supportive
forwarding-looking information has also been considered.

EcoGreen International Group Limited | ARIEREEEFR AT

3.1

(a)

B 7% B B

B 75 L Fen () =%

AEEZeREERRASIREEE
W RITER R MORR R E Al R
RoBETEERE BRAREBEFARSR
ZEBBEE  BEAABEMARMES
WEzeBMEERTEEMTA - KXE
BresRABREREER  EBNRRRHE
R - BN TR - BN —F
ERE TELRMIARBEARE -

AEBXBEYZESBRER - mi5E
R(BRERINERR - A BEMNERR
RenEgNErRRRkERRR)  EERE
RERBHESRAR  AEEXERRE
BEREHHSRTE 2 A BB
3 3 5K T 7 R R R & B B A R 3R A K
ZBEANZE AKEMNBITESH
TEASHETRER EFTSRRBE
EEZ U FARABR - AR -

EERR

AEBHTERER  BRRBDESTFRE
AERBEEEMIEZRERBE - A&H
MEESBEEECH  XPHEEM °
AEEEFERPEERR

EREREHEEERR; =@ ARNE
B SR ERFEERLNEE  £H
ANFEZI180BMEEH - KR2020F12
A31H * 61% K &R B RE A 1 R 2K
=@ A AW (2019 : 58%) °

R2020F 128318 @ EUWERFEEE£EE
FENII%REASBAFESGACER
(2019 : 18%) - AEERAEEETFH
FHEBRYSEEANEERR -

EERRMOELRAEHEEABERT
WA T RE S5 - ARAKENE
W RS E 5 & R B il O #9158 B2 £ M 5E
204558 -

AEBEBCEEMHERE L) FIWA
AR BRI AR BREREEEE
MR - 2R A 8 P A MR R
ReRBEREEBERERG RTERY
EEER  BRERERELBEER
SEBOE AEECDETELDN
THEFYEEERBREBHREREBEN
TERESEHR  AKEEEZRAANA
2R A SERIRTIEME B HY -



(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuen)
FlﬂaﬂUial HSK TaC[[]rS (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group categorises its trade receivables, except those
individually assessed, based on the days past due. The
expected loss rates are based on the historical monthly
outstanding balances of trade receivables of 12 months
and the corresponding historical credit losses experienced
within this period. The historical loss rates are adjusted
to reflect current and forward-looking information
on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of the
customers to settle the receivables.

Given the track record of regular repayment of trade
receivables, the directors are of the opinion that the risk
of default by these customers is not significant, taking into
account forward-looking information on macroeconomic
factors. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of trade
receivables is assessed to be insignificant and loss
allowance provided on a collective basis was amounted to
RMB5,861,000 (2019: RMB900,000).

For trade receivables relating to accounts in which
objective evidence that the debtor faces significant
financial difficulties or enter liquidation, they are assessed
individually for impairment allowance. Accordingly, no
(2019: RMB4,773,000) specific loss allowance was made as
at 31 December 2020.

In respect of cash deposited at banks, the credit risk is
considered to be low as the counterparties are reputable
banks. The existing counterparties do not have defaults
in the past. Therefore, expected credit loss rate of cash
at bank is assessed to be close to zero after considering
forward-looking information and no provision was made as
of 31 December 2020.

The credit quality of amounts due from related companies,
and other receivables excluding prepayments and tax
recoverable has been assessed with reference to historical
information about the counterparties default rates and
financial position of the counterparties. The directors are
of the opinion that the credit risk of the amounts due from
related parties is low due to the sound collection history of
the receivables due from them. Therefore, expected credit
loss rate of the amounts due from related companies,
and other receivables excluding prepayments and tax
recoverable is assessed to be close to zero after considering
forward-looking information and no provision was made as
of 31 December 2020.
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NOtes to the Consolidated Financial statements
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrinuen) 3. MEBRABRERE
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MERREE )
(b) Liquidity risk (b) REBELEPE
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity AEENHRERETHERRBDEST
requirements and its compliance with lending covenants, R URREREEREHENRE - A
to ensure that it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and BREFAVOR S HEH  REESE
adequate committed lines of funding from major financial ZoRMBARRHEANERES -
institutions to meet its liquidity requirements in the short LUm RN RANEHESERK -
and longer term.
The following tables detail the remaining contractual TRE T AREBRNEHE B AS KREL
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group's RFeNE(BEERBEOMNEN(NE
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual FEAE)EEBONRITHESFEERE
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments NP eRmBEMREE RS EMNK
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on WEFHHAENFRENE BN -
rates current at the balance sheet date) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay.
Where the loan agreement contains a repayable on MRERGHEERE —HREREER 2K
demand clause which gives the lender the unconditional R BT TR R A B AE AT AR R AR AR A
right to call the loan at any time, the amounts repayable HWENREE - R A BURE R X 28
are classified in the earliest time bracket in which the DR AERAANERERZER
lender could demand repayment. I (E A ZER -
Total More than More than
contractual 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted Repayable Within less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 1 year 2 years 5 years
EHE
RERM
BeRE -£% ZER
BEE 4% BERAK -£R BREME BRREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
The Group &R AEBTT AEBTT NG A ARETT NG S0 NG S
At 31 December 2020 R2020£128318
Borrowings g 2,236,921 2,334,875 556,763 349,130 513,886 915,096
Trade payables and bills payables Y& RERZH 324,390 324,390 16,802 307,588 - -
Accruals and other payables BB REMENT 40,607 40,607 - 40,607 - -
Derivatives settled on net basis ~ BELEfTHARTIA
- Interest rate swaps ~F=E# 3,380 3,835 - 2,037 1,119 679
Lease liabilities BEak 7,664 8,143 - 2,768 27113 2,662
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conminuen) 3. MBERKRERE
. S ~ N
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBRBRER )
(b) Liquidity risk (continued) (b) REBELEE)
Total More than More than
contractual 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted Repayable Within less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 1 year 2 years 5 years
BETAM
AR
R —Fk “ER
REE i RERNE —£R BREmE BRRAE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
The Group by ARETT ARETFT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT
At 31 December 2019 #201912A31A8
Borrowings &g 1,897,779 1,962,812 671,210 723,595 395,909 172,098
Trade payables and bills payables [E(TH 3t RERZE 2,922 322,922 24,654 298,268 - -
Accruals and other payables  EErERREMENT 24,082 24,082 = 24,082 = =
Amount due to a related company FE{+ BB 7 3008 2,309 2,309 2,309 - - -
Derivatives settled on net basis  (RSE£E/TESHTE
~ Interest rate swaps —fEE# 111 1112 - 117 - -
Lease liabilities HERE 5,231 5,510 - 3713 731 1,066

The table below summarises the maturity analysis of
the Group's financial liabilities based on the scheduled
repayments set out in the respective agreements. The
amounts include interest payments computed using
contractual rates. Taking into account the Group’s financial
position, the directors do not consider that it is probable
that the banks will exercise their discretion to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such
amounts due and borrowings will be repaid in accordance
with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the
agreements.

TERELAAEESRABEBREANZE
HEZEERERZINABSNT - BH
THERERANNXFAEZANEM
Ko B RAKEZHBRN - EFR
B BBITARTATIETEREZB
BRERINER BERR %52
BB REESREBEMATEEER
HHEIEE -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrinuen)
31 FiﬂaﬂCial HSK TaC[UrS (continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

3. BIXERERE »

3 HBEREZg)
(b) HEBELEBR(E)

Maturity Analysis -
financial liabilities based on scheduled
repayments
BRAS N -ERERESNERAR
Total More than More than
contractual 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted Within less than less than
amount cash flow 1 year 2 years 5 years
BiTH
RERH -E4 ZER
BEE BERELE —£R BfRmE  BFRIE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®TT AE®TR AE®TT AE®TR AE®TT
As at 31 December 2020 2020812A318
Borrowings - 2,236,921 2,342,624 913,642 513,886 915,096
Trade payables and bills payables ENERRENZE 324,390 324,390 16,802 307,588 -
Accruals and other payables B ERRAMERT 40,607 40,607 40,607 - -
Derivatives settled on net basis FEEEZNATR
- Interest rate swaps -fl&E# 3,380 3,835 2,037 1,119 679
Lease liabilities HEgf 1,664 8,143 2,768 2,713 2,662
As at 31 December 2019 R2019512A318
Borrowings & 1,897,779 1,976,091 1,400,823 403,170 172,098
Trade payables and hills payables EREARENRE 322,922 322,922 322,922 = =
Accruals and other payables fEit B A RE MR 24,082 24,082 24,082 - -
Amount due to a related company EfB® AR 2.309 2.309 2.309 - -
Derivatives settled on net basis FRREEZETIR
- Interest rate swaps -f|&E# 1172 1172 1172 - -
Lease liabilities HEgfE 5,231 5,510 3,713 731 1,066
(c) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk () RERERAABEFNERR
The Group's exposure to changes in interest rates is mainly AREBZHERBREZRERITEE -
attributable to its bank borrowings. Bank borrowings at ErRAEREREZ2RITEECREER
variable rates expose the Group to cash flow interest- HEeREMNXER - HHREFBH
rate risk which is partially offset by bank balances held EEBMRITERAEE - HEBRMH
at variable rates. Bank borrowings at fixed rates expose ZIRTRERASERY AL BENE
the Group to fair value interest-rate risk. Details of the Bk o BEEAAREERITEEZFE - B
Group's bank borrowings are disclosed in Note 28 to the A ORISR M 28 B R - AN E LUE
consolidated financial statements. The Group analyses its BARSMEMERR  X&EEFHEZ
interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and to hedge its EER AR Ut ABRE  BRERFE
variable rate by fixed rate instruments, when necessary. BERT - Hb iR AR A E M o
Various scenarios are simulated taking into consideration
refinancing, renewal of existing positions, alternative
financing and hedging.
During 2019 and 2020, the Group’s borrowings at variable MR2019F &2020F K - REREZFEF
rates were denominated in United States dollars (“USD"), RAEMNERUET AREMETE
RMB and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD"). BT e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuen)
Hnﬂﬂm&” HSK TaC[[]rS (continued)

Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk
(continuedq)

It is estimated that an increase/decrease of 50 basis points
as at 31 December 2020 in bank borrowing interest rates
for bank loans with all other variables held constant would
decrease/increase the profit after taxation by approximately
RMB10,444,000 (2019: 50 basis points; RMB8,831,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the balance sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for non derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly operates in Mainland China with most of
the transactions settled in RMB. Foreign exchange rate risk
arises when future commercial transactions or recognised
assets and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is
not the entity’s functional currency.

The Group’'s assets and liabilities, and transactions
arising from its operations primarily do not expose to
material foreign exchange risk, other than certain trade
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, borrowings and
derivative financial instruments denominated in USD and
HKD, details of which have been disclosed in Note 20,
Note 23, Note 28 and Note 19, respectively. The Group's
assets and liabilities are primarily denominated in RMB.
Other than approximately 15% (2019: 15%) of the sales
are denominated in USD and certain expenses in HKD, the
Group mainly generates RMB from sales in Mainland China
to meet its liabilities denominated in RMB.

Further depreciation or appreciation of the USD and the
HKD against the RMB will affect the Group’s financial
position and results of operations.

If the RMB had strengthened/weakened against the USD
and the HKD by 1% as at the respective balance sheet
dates, profit after taxation would increase/decrease by
approximately RMB9,671,000 (2019: RMB6,143,000)
and increase/decrease by approximately RMB2,325,000
(2019: RMB7,168,000), respectively, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange gain/loss on translation of USD and HKD
denominated bank borrowings, trade receivables and cash
and cash equivalents.

(c)

(d)

B BF B B R P o

MR REE )
BeRBRAAEEANEAR ()

202012 A318 @ H&RITERH
MEREG LA TRRSOEELES - R
EHEMEERFTIE  REEFBIR
BN A R#10,444,0007T(2019 ¢
SOfEEXEE : ARMS,831,0007T) °

LRFREIFTNEECBRRNKEE
EHEEREREE  WHEAEZBEE
TR B 3E DT 4 & B T A Y F 5 2 B ik 1
o

4B /R B

AEBIEETRANMEEER - K&
BAMOIRS  BERAGBHUHEA
REGEH - ERRBEXZH U HER?
EMBENEERTIFZERNTIE
E¥% NERREGEL

AEEMEEHRBBUARERBRESYH
RGEAEWESEAIINERR - BET
BUEZR HEeRERIEEEE B8
UETEESRTENETR B THEG
BRI K FE20 « MFE23 ~ M sE28 KBt
F1OWE)IN AEENEERBEEE
AAREESE  B4915% (2019 : 15%)
MEENETFENARETATHY
Sh AEBEFBENEEIERDAR
B DEMRARBTENAE -

ELRABLTAAREE-FREXAE
HEeFEREENM BN REERE -

RERBEEER  ARBEELERET
FEBZE1%ED RN DB E
FE# ARK9,671,00070(2019 1 AR
#6,143,0007T) RN, R A AR
2,325,0007C (2019 : AR ¥7,168,000
) TERABREUETRABTAENM
MIRTERETESR T ARMSMER
Was 518 o
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conrinuen) 3. MERBRER
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 MBRBREE#)
(e) Price risk (e) fEHREE
The Group is exposed to equity securities price risk because HRAEEMBEE TRESDBEERAR
certain investments held by the Group are classified as BEFAHMEE NG SREE &
FVOCI. As the amount of such financial assets is not AEBEHBRAEFEHREAR - ARZ
material to the Group, the exposure to price risk is EeREEZSEHAERME L TE
considered to be insignificant. R BERBERERZSTEK -
The Group purchases turpentine as one of its major raw AEBERBRGHHIEAHAEREMNE
materials for its manufacturing process, and is exposed to ZERME - WEETISERKRE - KE
fluctuation in its market price. The Group does not use any B0 R EA T E T AUNEERME
derivative instruments to manage its economic exposure to BRI 2 EERR -
the change in price of raw materials.
i i SR AR A
3.2 Capital risk management 32 BEoREkRER
The Group's objectives when managing capital are to AEENESERRRK  EREAEE
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going BREELE  UARREHDBZMNAE
concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and SRR EARENE  RASERFKE
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal B EREBLOREE SR »
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, RTHEFAAEERGEE  AREAE
the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to Amﬁiﬁf‘vﬁxﬁé’ﬂﬂﬁﬁéﬁlﬁﬁ AR
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new DIKMERRE BITHRIEEEE
shares or sell assets to reduce debt. LURBERTS ©
Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors BERNEMAR K AKEMNAAE
capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is HEREREER o I RIRBEBFR
calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt BRAREARE - BEHFERBEE(R
is calculated as total borrowings (including current and FEEMEEA BRI EDER K JE B0 A
non-current borrowings as shown in the consolidated EFORERERREEEY - BEAR
balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital [z (MeaHEERBRMAI) - %
is calculated as “equity”, as shown in the consolidated &% -
balance sheet, plus net debt.
The net debt amounts and gearing ratio at 31 December 20194 %2020 12 A31H - FET
2020 and 2019 were as follows: ZEHEREREQNT
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®EF T
Total borrowings (Note 28) s (ffsx28) 2,236,921 1,897,779
Less: cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) ,)I RERIRSFEY(HIFE23) (1,460,152) (958,126)
Net debt FER 776,769 939,653
Total capital BEIK 3,434,066 3,235,447
Gearing ratio BEX 23% 29%
100  EcoGreen International Group Limited | F 4B EE AR A 7



3.3

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmimuen
Capital risk management (continued)

There is no significant change to the gearing ratio during
the year.

Fair value estimation

HKFRS 7 requires disclosure of fair value measurements by
level of the following fair value measurement hierarchy:

o Level 1 — Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities. The Group does not
have this type of financial instruments.

° Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included
within level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly
(that is, derived from prices). As at 31 December
2020, the Group recognised outstanding interest
rate swap contracts with fair value of RMB3,380,000
as liabilities (2019: RMB1,172,000 as liabilities
and RMB276,000 as assets). The Group recognised
outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts with
fair value of RMB1,177,000 as assets (2019: nil).

o Level 3 — Inputs for asset or liability that are not based
on observable market data (that is, unobservable
inputs). As at 31 December 2020, the Group had FVPL
of RMB30,001,000 and FVOCI of RMB200,000 (2019:
FVOCI of RMB200,000) that are within this category.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3 during
the year.

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use
of observable market data where it is available and rely as
little as possible on entity specific estimates.

If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in level 2. If one
or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable
market data, the instrument is included in level 3.

3.2

3.3

B BF B B R P o

ExRRERE®)
ERC BELELESASE .

~ A BEME

(BEAEMBREEIDTRERTIAAE
EERBRELAAEBEE

e HREEXABEEBRMHRE
(CREFHB)(F1E) - REBLE
HEANERMTA -

e BRTIFIEMBEMNREN  Z%E
EMNaENTHERNEMmEA @ 7]
AEE(AIfIMER) kB (AR
BER)(E2/E) - R2020512A4
318 AEERFENALEEN RS
NEREHEARZARBEBARE
3,380,000 ciER A EE(2019: A
R#¥1,172,000 R BB ERA
R#276,000ciERABEE) - A&
EFADAGEENRINEEGRZ
AAREBEARARE1,177,000 T #
RAEE2019 : £&) o

o ZEEMABBWIFKEITERMISH
Eam A (BRI A)(F3
[E)  M2020%128318 * A&E
BEERAREEFABRZERE
EHX ARE30,001,0007T RIZ AR
BEFAEMEEKGZZ SREE
H AR #200,00075(2019 : A
hEEFARMEEREZ CHBE
EHXAR200,0007T) °

FARE - F2HEFEIF ML HER -

REEERBRMBEEENERITANAA
EEMNAGBERMNEE - HEXNEE
NMBAABEMmSERE(WME)  BEDK
FEE B E BT o

Nt —MITENARBEMEHA
EERGAAEREE  AlZe®T
BIAFE2E - (n—IBXZIHE RN AL
ERBAERMISEE  AlZERMIA
HIAZEIE -
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (conmivuen)
Fa” Va|Ue BSHmaHOﬂ (continued)

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial
instruments include:

o The fair value of interest rate swaps was calculated as
the present value of the estimated future cash flows
based on observable yield curves.

o The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts
is determined using forward exchange rates at
the balance sheet date with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

o Other techniques, such as discounted cash flow
analysis, are used to determine fair value for the
remaining financial instruments.

Fair value measurements using significant unobservable
inputs. The valuation of level 3 instruments included
investment in wealthy management products issued by
banks. As these instruments are not traded in an active
market, their fair value have been determined using various
applicable valuation techniques.

The wealthy management product will mature within
one year with variable return rates range between
1.01% to 3.14%. The expected return rate, which is key
unobservable input, was indexed to the movement of
designated foreign currencies. The higher the expected
return rate, the higher the fair value. Based on the
movement of designated foreign currencies during the year
ended 31 December 2020, the expected return rate of the
wealthy management product was fixed at 1.01%. The fair
value of RMB30,001,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019:
nil) is determined based on discounted cash flow assuming
the expected return will be obtained upon maturity.

EcoGreen International Group Limited | A5 EIfR & EHR A A
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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= =5
3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) 3. E!M%ELI‘?E B IE%“@?/
3.3 Fair value estimation (continued) 33 ~ABEME®@
The following table presents the changes in level 3 FVPL FIBRAARBEANER EMEEIER
items for the year ended 31 December 2020: M2020F12A31BZ2EERANE - 0
TR @

2020 2019
RMB‘000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T AREFTT
Opening book amount FURASE - -
Additions 0 30,001 -
Closing net book amount FREESHE 30,001 -

3.4 0ffsetting financial assets and financial liabilities 34 TS MEEMNE &

The Group does not have any financial assets and liabilities AREBYELHEERABTEY A
that are subject to offsetting, enforceable master netting NITEEIRLT A BB ZARE o

arrangements and similar agreements for the year.
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GRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are
discussed below.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses. These estimates
are based on current market conditions and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar
nature. It could change significantly as a result of changes
in customer taste and competitor actions in response to
changes in market conditions. Management reassesses
these estimates at the end of each reporting period.
During the year ended 31 December 2020, a reversal of
provision for impairment of inventories of RMB672,000
(2019: provision of RMB764,000) was recognised in the
consolidated income statement within ‘cost of sales’.

Estimated impairment of intangible assets

The Group makes provision for impairment of intangible
assets based on an assessment of the recoverability of
intangible assets. Provisions are applied to intangible assets
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be recoverable. The identification of
impairment requires the use of judgments and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value of
intangible assets and provision for impairment in the period
in which such estimate has been changed.

Estimated loss allowance for trade receivanles

The loss allowances for trade receivables are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgments in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation,
based on the Group’s past history, existing market
conditions as well as forward looking estimates at the end
of each reporting period. Details of the key assumptions
and inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimated userul lives of property, plant and
equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation charges for its property,
plant and equipment. This estimate is based on the
historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to market
conditions. Management will increase the depreciation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives or it will write off or write down technically obsolete
or non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in Hong Kong and
Mainland China. Significant judgment is required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
determination is uncertain during the ordinary course of
business. The Group recognises liabilities for anticipated
tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional
taxes will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the income tax
and deferred tax provisions in the period in which such
determination is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised when
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate, such
differences will impact the recognition of deferred income
tax assets and income tax expense in the periods in which
such estimate is changed.

Provision for withholding tax that would be payable on
the unremitted earnings of certain subsidiaries is subject
to management’s estimates that the Company controls the
dividend policies of these subsidiaries.

4.

(d)
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GRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGMENTS (CONTINUED)

Research and development costs

Critical judgment by the Group’s management is applied
when deciding whether the recognition requirements
for development costs have been met. This is necessary
as the economic success of any product development is
uncertain and may be subject to future technical problems
at the time of recognition. Judgments are based on the
best information available at each balance sheet date. In
addition, all internal activities related to the research and
development of new products is continuously monitored by
the Group’s management.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as
the executive Directors. The executive Directors review the
Group's internal reports in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on the internal reports provided
for review by the executive Directors.

The executive Directors consider the performance of the
Group from a product perspective. The executive Directors
assesses the performance of the operating segments based
on a measure of adjusted EBITDA. This measurement basis
excludes the effects of non-recurring expenditure from the
operating segments such as write-off of property, plant
and equipment, provision for impairment of intangible
assets, legal expenses and net exchange gains/losses. The
measure also excludes the effects of share of profit of an
associate and net/losses on financial instruments. Interest
income and expenditure are not allocated to segments,
as this type of activity is driven by the central treasury
function, which manages the cash position of the Group.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 0. /J}ﬁﬂﬁ*ﬂ(%)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December HZE2020F12A31BIEFE 2D HER
2020 is presented below: 25T -
Scent Specialties
and Taste Naturals and Others Unallocated Total
RHRILEm
FERKE RREY REAM ROE ok

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARBTR

Revenue WA 1,587,667 593,916 328,438 - 2,510,021
Adjusted EBITDA & HEEBITDA 324,862 79,348 75,902 - 480,112
Depreciation of property, ME - BERREZ

plant and equipments e - - - (18,760) (18,760)
Depreciation of EREEEZRE

right-of-use assets - - - (4,476) (4,476)
Amortisation of EREEEH

intangible assets - - - (23,315) (23,315)
Net losses on derivative TAESBIA

financial instruments EEEA - - - (13,477) (13,477)
Net finance income BB F e - - - 100,957 100,957
Others Hoh - - - (10,447) (10,447)
Share of profit of an associate JE{5H:& 25 - - - 604 604
Taxation BIE - - - (102,773)  (102,773)
Profit for the year FEMHE 324,862 79,348 75,902 (71,687) 408,425
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (conmivuen) 5. DWER #)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December HE2019F12A31BIEFEZHHER
2019 is presented below: 25T
Scent Specialties
and Taste Naturals and Others Unallocated Total
BHRtEm
FAERKE RAEY) REA Aol ot
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFTT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETH
Revenue WA 1,649,071 456,380 317,359 - 2,422,810
Adjusted EBITDA RFWEEBITDA 318,592 65,966 60,087 - 444,645
Depreciation of property, ME BEMREZ
plant and equipments heE - - - (32,105) (32,105)
Depreciation of CREEEZTE
right-of-use assets - - - (4,607) (4,607)
Write-off of property, plant %% - BEKREZ
and equipment EMH - - - (11,592) (11,592)
Amortisation of EREEEH
intangible assets - - - (17,795) (17,795)
Provision for impairment of & & E R ER
intangible assets - - - (5,000) (5,000)
Net losses on derivative TESMIA
financial instruments BiRFE = = = (1,528) (1,528)
Net finance expenses HEBRFE = = = (42,254) (42,254)
Others Hoh = - - (4,944) (4,944)
Share of profit of an associate FE{5E & iz - - - 1,638 1,638
Taxation 1| = = - (97,418) (97,418)
Profit for the year FEHMHE 318,592 65,966 60,087 (215,605) 229,040
Liabilities related to contracts with customers EBREAN T Al
As at 31 December 2020, contract liabilities included in HN2020512 8318 ' HAESERRE

108

accruals and other payables amounted to RMB1,816,000

(2019: RMB2,330,000).

The following table shows how much of the revenue
recognised in the current reporting period relates to
carried-forward contract liabilities.

HEMRZEHNEAERARY1,816,000
t(2019 : AR#¥2,330,0007T) °

TRIRRE B3R & B A R 1 I a8
HEENENAENEREE -

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBT T ARBTT
Revenue recognised that was included in the & AHIHIA 4 & E&EH
contract liabilities balance at the beginning I E#ERUA
of the period 2,330 423
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PEER #)

M2 ERE - INEEER P 2 B A
TiRBERP AN - N0 & DT
8 AKENEAABEMARMES
WaeEREE BEMSHEENT
FEMTATERROBRBEE - £
WEERBNREEREMSE - AR
SENETHMEHAR  BRRTES
MITEARTRESHER  SULTHEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (conrivuen) b.

In presenting information of geographical segments,
segment revenue from external customers by continent
is based on the destination of the customer. The Group's
FVOCI, deferred tax income assets and derivative financial
instruments are not considered to be segment assets for
reporting. The Group’s deferred income tax liabilities,
borrowings and derivative financial instruments are not
considered to be segment liabilities for reporting as they

are managed by the Group’s central treasury. ROFEE -
Asia
(excluding
Mainland Mainland North Others/
China Europe China) America Unallocated Total
[l
(GET Ht/
HER B BR4h) EEM RAE e

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T ARET T ARBT L ARET ARET T

2020 2020F

Revenue WA 2,135,477 134,204 112,933 92,598 34,809 2,510,021
Non-current assets FrRaEE 2,146,587 - 5,712 - 5,331 2,157,630
Total assets EEBE 5,299,523 5,004 112,727 - 6,508 5,423,762
Total liabilities BREE 407,170 606 18,138 - 2,340,551 2,766,465
2019 2019%

Revenue WA 2,048,989 123,286 113,412 102,102 35,021 2,422,810
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,594,578 - 1,916 - 5,107 1,601,601
Total assets BEBE 4,580,818 3,395 94,900 - 5,383 4,684,496
Total liabilities BERE 387,355 722 12,424 - 1,988,201 2,388,702

BEARXXBREREEE(ME15) Y
X BEERE(MNEIOOARETLEE
(PHFEE17) - AR AR BRI D E AR
XHURPEALc EEES  Fibd
BEEHREARAZ @B

Capital expenditure comprises additions to right-of-use
assets (Note 15), property, plant and equipment (Note 16)
and intangible assets (Note 17). No geographical analysis
of capital expenditure is presented as substantially all of
the Group's capital expenditure was incurred in respect of
assets located in Mainland China.

Revenues of RMB217,391,000 (2019: RMB283,981,000)
and RMB146,584,000 (2019: RMB180,857,000),
respectively, are derived from two major customers. These
revenues are mainly attributable to the segments of Scent
and Taste and Naturals.

REMEEERFHNE=D A A A
R # 217,391,000 7T (2019 : AR ¥
283,981,0007T) & A R # 146,584,000
6 (2019 : AR #180,857,0007T) ° Ui
EREFEREFERRERRAEY

=
=5
PaNkvi
DED °
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OTHER (LOSSES)/INGOME, NET 6. it (E518) WA — F 5
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREFIT
Income on government grants (Note a) B fF#i8h > Yoas (Mizta) 5,851 3,967
Derivative financial instruments PrEemIA(MED)
(Note b):
— Net realised losses —B#E 8% (12,170) (732)
— Net fair value losses —ARFEEE (1,307) (796)
Net foreign exchange (losses)/ gains SEIEH (BE),hEs (MsE14)
(Note 14) (3.360) 1,973
Loss on disposals of property, HEWE - WEMEKHEZEE
plant and equipment (81) (694)
Write-off of property, plant and WE - BB MR E 2
equipment (Note c) (Pt 3EC) - (11,592)
Others HAh 23 (4)
(11,044) (7,878)

Notes: BT -

(a)  There are no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies (@)  ELEIRAT B8 A M7 ] KW 2 B9 16
attaching to these government grants. The Group did B EMRBESY  c AEERBEEK
not benefit directly from any other forms of government EREMEANBFED PR -
assistance.

(b) Net realised losses on interest rate swap and foreign (b) ERRFNEREBRINESRZEZEE

exchange contracts amounting to RMB12,170,000 (2019:
RMB732,000). The net fair value losses on interest rate swap
amounting to RMB2,484,000 (2019: RMB547,000) and the
net fair value gains on forward foreign exchange contracts
of RMB1,177,000 (2019: net fair value loss of RMB249,000)
had been recognised, respectively, which amounts are
included in the respective year end balances of derivative
financial instruments as set out in Note 19.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
restructured part of a plant resulting in write-off of
certain property, plant and equipment amounted to
RMB11,592,000.
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1. NET FINANCE INCOME/(EXPENSES) 1. BBkE (ER)FHE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T R ARBTT

Interest expenses: FMEBA :

— Bank borrowings —RITEE (97,777) (101,567)

— Lease liabilities -HEsE (172) (340)
Less: amounts capitalised on W EERBEEENLEE

qualifying assets 51,805 44,758
Finance expenses B E (46,144) (57,149)
Net foreign exchange gains/(losses) on F& &S HIEE X Uz (EE)

financing activities (Note 14) FEE(MEE14) 112,299 (26,860)
Total finance income/(expenses) wE e (BH) 66,155 (84,009)
Finance income B g

— Interest income on bank deposits — IR RHF B M = 34,802 41,755
Net finance income/(expenses) e (BH)FHE 100,957 (42,254)
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8. EXPENSES BY NATURE

12

8. BUEEE T ZRAX

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T T ARBTIT
Depreciation of property, ME - KE - REINE
plant and equipment (Note 16) (FizE16) 18,760 32,105
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEE & (M5E15)
(Note 15) 4,476 4,607
Amortisation of intangible assets mR RS (MEE17)
(Note 17) 23,315 17,795
Provision for impairment of EREERERE(MTE17)
intangible assets (Note 17) - 5,000
(Reversal of)/provision for impairment Z& R EEE (E#) =Hi2
of inventories (Note 22) (FfzE22) (672) 764
Employee benefit expense (Note 9) EEREF A (M) 85,180 76,564
Cost of inventories (Note 22) FERA(M7E22) 1,805,930 1,753,003
Transportation costs ERIAKA 27,169 23,179
Expenses related to low value and REREREE 2 ZA(HE15)
short-term leases (Note 15) 1,788 2,462
COVID-19 related rent concession HFABRRSREBAZ
HeBEE (322) =
Auditors’ remuneration = A B &
— Audit service —Ei R 2,561 2,220
— Non-audit service — IEE T IR - -
Utilities and electricity charges BRELE) ) K E B 32,920 35,700
Subcontracting expenses nTEMA 17,874 16,477
Other PRC taxes H b R B IE 10,432 20,204
Consumables and supplies VLB R 4,530 5,875
Bank charges R17E H 6,109 5,089
Other expenses HtER 49,102 46,352
Total cost of sales, selling and SHEMKAK - HE RS
marketing costs and HEERKARITHER
administrative expenses KRR 2,089,152 2,047,396

EcoGreen International Group Limited | A5 EIfR & EHR A A



Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

B BF B B R P o

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE 9. EEEAMX

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR¥TF T ARETTT

Wages, salaries, other allowances and IT& - %4 - HiEBEREY
benefits in kind E 80,693 69,995

Pension costs — defined contribution  E{R& KA — ERE T2

plans (Note a) (FtzZa) 4,487 6,569
85,180 76,564

Pensions - defined contribution plans

As stipulated by rules and regulations in Mainland China,
the Group contributes to a state-sponsored retirement plan
for its employees in Mainland China, which is a defined
contribution plan. The Group and its employees contribute
approximately 12% to 14% and 0% to 8%, respectively, of
the employees’ salary as specified by the local government,
and the Group has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond
the annual contributions. The state-sponsored retirement
plan is responsible for the entire pension obligations
payable to retired employees.

The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees
to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by
an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, each of
the Group and its Hong Kong employees makes monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident
Fund legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’
contributions are subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month.

During the year, the aggregate amount of the Group’s
contributions to the aforementioned retirement schemes
was approximately RMB4,487,000 (2019: RMB6,569,000).
As at 31 December 2020, the Group was not entitled to
any forfeited contributions to reduce the Group's future
contributions.
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9. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSE (conmmuen) 9.
(0) Five highest paid individuals (b)

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group include four (2019: four) directors whose
emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in Note 36.
The emoluments payable to the remaining one (2019: one)
individual during 2020 are as follows:

EERBFRAX &
FEZ&E#F A
AEMBREFMOEL AL EEDL
(2019 ¢ PURD) &% - {11403 BN A5

MM 3E36 AR - 2019F XN H 84—
f7(2019 : —fL) AHFH BT :

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT

Basic salaries, other allowances and BEAR#HS EMEEREYH R

benefits in kind 1,189 1,099

Retirement benefit — defined contribution :E{K#gF| — EFB T2
plans 16 16
1,205 1,115

The emoluments fell within the following band:

It FFHEE T HIESHERA

Number of individual(s)

A"
2020 2019
Emolument band e el
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 7B #1,000,001 T2
75 #1,500,0007T 1 1

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019,
no emoluments were paid to the directors or the five
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or as
compensation for loss of office.
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10. SUBSIDIARIES 0. WERF

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 AN "52020612 31 B = 2 B2 A
December 2020: R E
Proportion of
Proportion of ~ Proportionof  ordinary shares
ordinary shares  ordinary shares held by
Place of incorporation and Particular of issued  directly held by heldby  non-controlling  Principal activities and
Name kind of legal entity share capital parent (%) the Group (%) interests (%) place of operation
ARAILER HEAEERRE  HARERAN  AFBRMER
£# EEIBER BRARAFE EERILA EERUA  RENEERES IEERREEHY
EcoGreen Fine Chemicals Limited ~ British Virgin Islands S§95,000 100% 100% - Investment holding, in Hong Kong
ABRRER 95,000%7C ReER B4
Doingcom International Limited Hong Kong HK$ 100,000,000 - 100% - Trading of fine chemicals, in Hong Kong
RAERARAT Bk #%100,000,0007C BERMLZR B2
Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co, Ltd. Mainland China RMB190,000,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of fine chemicals in
EPh s EERAR (Note b) ARH190,000,0007 Mainland China
e (Rith) EEREERALER AR
Xiamen Doingcom Biotechnology ~ Mainland China RMB50,000,000 = 100% - Manufacturing of fine chemicals
Co,, Ltd, (Note ¢) AB%50,000,0007 in Mainland China
ERRBENREERAR hERH(H) EERM SR vERY
ERhEESRRAR (M) Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% - Sale of fine chemicals in
Xiamen Doingcom Enterprise Limited ~ (Note d) ARE20,000,0007 Mainland China
(Note &) st (BzEa) HERM SR ERY
EFARRERAR (Hita) Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of food additives
Xiamen Doingcom Food Co., Ltd. (Note ¢) AR20,000,0007 and seasoning
(Note &) e A (ite) EEREERRAMARARE - P
Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of fine chemicals in
Development Co., Ltd. (Note ) AR20,000,0007 Mainland China
FRmREZERARAR hE () EERBERMILER EAL
ENEREZTARAA (Mira)  Mainland China 5410,000,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of fine chemicals
Zhangzhou Huiyou Enterprise (Note g) 10,000,000%7 in Mainland China
Co., Lid. (Note &) e At EERUERAN SR PARYD
R HESZARAA (MEEa)  Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 55% 45%  Sale of forestry products in Mainland China
Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry Trading~~ (Note hand ) ARE10,000,0007 HEMEER DARY
Co., Ltd. (Note a) hEM ()
RiaLI(EM)BRAR(Hika)  Mainland China RMB21,580,000 - 100% - Manufacturing and sale of fine chemicals in
EcoGreen Chemicals (ZhangZhou) (Note i) AB%21,580,0007 Mainland China
Co., Lid. (Note a) A () EEREERALER DAY
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10. SUBSIDIARIES (conrivuen)

116

Notes:

(a)  The English names are for identification purpose only.

(b)  Xiamen Doingcom Chemical Co., Ltd. is sino-foreign owned
enterprise established in Xinmen, Fujian Province, Mainland

China for a term of 40 years up to October 2037.

(c)  Xiamen Doingcom Biotechnology Co., Ltd. is sino-foreign
owned enterprise established in Xiamen, Fujian Province,

Mainland China for a term of 20 years up to July 2024.

(d) Xiamen Doingcom Enterprise Limited is a limited liability
enterprise established in Xiamen, Fujian Province, Mainland

China for a term of 20 years up to June 2024.

(e) Xiamen Doingcom Food Co., Ltd. is a limited liability
enterprise established in Xiamen, Fujian Province, Mainland

China for a term of 20 years up to October 2031.

(f) ~ Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. are wholly
foreign owned enterprises established in Xiamen, Fujian
Province, Mainland China for a term of 30 years up to July

2026.

(g) Zhangzhou Huiyou Enterprise Co., Ltd. is wholly foreign
owned enterprise established in Changtai, Zhangzhou,
Fujian Province, Mainland China for a term of 50 years up to

April 2057.

(h)  Chuxiong EcoGreen Forestry Trading Co., Ltd. is a limited
liability enterprise established in Chuxiong, Yunnan
Province, Mainland China for a term of 30 years up to March

2037.

(i) EcoGreen Chemicals (ZhangZhou) Co., Ltd is a limited
liability are wholly foreign owned enterprises established in
ZhangZhou, Fujian Province, Mainland China for a term of

20 years up to December 2032.

) During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
disposed of 45% of the equity interest in then Chuxiong
EcoGreen Forestry Trading Co., Ltd, a then wholly owned
subsidiary, to an independent third party for a consideration
of RMB10,000,000. The Group's equity interests in the
subsidiary was reduced from 100% to 55%. The difference
between the consideration receivable and the carrying value
of net assets disposed of in an equity transaction with non-
controlling interest resulted from the change in the Group's
ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss
of control over the subsidiary amounting to approximately
RMB5,035,000 was recognized in equity and an increase of
approximately RMB4,965,000 was recognised in the non-

controlling interests.
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204 » 2024F6 A1k °

EFFHRAERAR ARG E AR
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BEEFMRILIZBRAR  BERE
20%F * £2032F12A 1k »

REE2019F12A31BZ2FEAN + &
EEBERE2ENBARREREMKE
BS5BRATINISSBEHET BB
MNE=H R{EAAKK10,000,000
JC o NEBPAHIE A AKX HEH 100%
B> Z55% o EE IR il M 4 25 O RR A
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5,035,000 cE R AEDR - HARE
4,965,000 T E R AFER M #ER 2
AN o




Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

B BB TS SRR B ot

4
11. INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE N BERE

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET AREFIT

At 1 January ®1A18 10,334 8,696

Share of profit of an associate FE(L B A B (D58 604 1,638

At 31 December M®12A31H 10,938 10,334
Details of the associate as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 2020 K 2019F 12 A31 BB & E

are as follows:

Place of business/ Particulars of

EVIEE T

Percentage of

country of registered and ownership interest Measurement
Name of entity incorporation paid up capital (Held by a subsidiary) ~ Method Principal activities
EMRIBEE/ R i 43
£ 330 BEREAFE (MHBARESR) FEE TEER
2020 2019
Wuhan Geyuan Fine Mainland China RMB30,000,000 25% 25% Equity Manufacturing of
Chemicals Co., Ltd. (Note a) fine chemicals
RERERRACIBRAR  FEAML AK30,000,0007 Emt FERAER
(Htita)
Note: MI5E -
(@)  Wuhan Geyuan Fine Chemicals Co., Ltd. is a private limited (a) RERBRBHALELIERARALAGTR

liability company and there is no quoted market price
available for its shares.

In the opinion of the directors, the associate is relatively
immaterial to the Group and therefore no summarised
financial information of the associate was disclosed.

There are no contingent liabilities relating to Group's
interest in the associate and there are no contingent
liabilities of the associate itself.

Details of balances with an associate are disclosed in Note
35(b).

BERR  ERIEAETSERE

ESR/BEMHYKREYAEXN - Bk
BEHBMENBEV T ERHMELKE -

gk =

MR ERE  AKRERETAERE
BERBERFOEEARAEE -

ErLpgt

~

TR FIE R M FE35(0) K EE -
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12. TAXATION

118

12. HiIE

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETTT
Current tax WAEHIE
— Mainland China corporate income — RFEEREAMDESH
tax for the year 91,665 87,390
— Under provision in previous year —LARIFE Dt 2 5 332 396
Total current tax A IBEARE 91,997 87,786
Deferred income tax (Note 29) EIEPTS R A (M EE29) 10,776 9,632
102,773 97,418
Notes: B &E
(a) Hong Kong profits tax (a) FEERRAEH
No Hong Kong profits tax has been provided as the Group F N 5 B 3 4 7E 7 8 M 15 ok R ER B AR
had no assessable profit arising in or derived from Hong TRAE - [ b I 4% B & 2 R4S B0 1 H
Kong. 1 e
(b) Mainland China corporate income tax (b) HEIRBEEREH
The subsidiaries established in Mainland China are subject R B AR S 2 [ B A R 1R 25%
to Mainland China corporate income tax at a rate of 25% (2019 : 25% ) 2 Bt = @4 B A 3 1
(2019: 25%). Xiamen Doingcom Chemicals Co. Ltd. was XA o R20184 108 - EFI+
granted the High and New Technology Enterprise (“HNTE") {EE2BRARER T =R ENM
status in October 2018, being valid for 3 years, and iz - REI3E - AU ATRERHE15%
therefore is entitled to a preferential tax rate of 15%. B ©
(c) Overseas income taxes () BIFEBH
The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands RAAIRBEFREHEAREERSHS
as an exempted company with limited liability under the MK AEREER AR - HubER
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and, accordingly, is RHNFESESAER - ARRERE
exempted from Cayman Islands income tax. The Company’s BEESK 2 HEBR R TIIREEEE
subsidiaries established in the British Virgin Islands are ZERESEREEAREEMAT - Bt
incorporated under the International Business Companies BRRHMNEBRELEEER -
Acts of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are
exempted from British Virgin Islands income tax.
(d) Withholding tax (d) RIMABH

Pursuant to the New Tax Law, a 10% withholding tax is
levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland
China. The requirement is effective from 1 January 2008
and applies to earnings after 31 December 2007. A lower
withholding tax rate may be applied if there is a tax treaty
between China and the jurisdiction of the foreign investors.
Withholding taxes are payable on dividends distributed/
to be distributed by those subsidiaries and an associate
established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

12. TAXATION (conrimuen)

The tax on the Group's profit before taxation differs from
the theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted
average tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated
entities and the reconciliation is as follows:

12.

B BF B B R P o

ﬁ IE (%)

B S BB BT R B 2 BUE - &
£ R4 BF B2 B8R0 PR 40 0 T 49 B
HEMEANERBATEER - HE
mF

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARET T ARET T
Profit before taxation A% BT A 511,198 326,458
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates REBBERFEER 2
applicable to profits in the respective  Eihfi K& 7§18
countries 81,056 73,190
Income not subject to tax AR e (4,238) (782)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 7~ a] 154 &) 2 F 5,216 2,609
Under provision in previous year AR B Dt 2 FTiE Bt 332 396
Withholding tax on dividends HEfEAR ZREATINNZ
of the PRC subsidiaries RINFTEH 11,000 10,000
Tax losses for which no deferred tax ;8 A MRIRIERIEEEW
asset was recognised % EE 9,418 12,005
Utilisation of previously unrecognised  {f fi LA B8 B HE 2 0 B 75 B 18
tax losses (11) -
Tax charge FIEX 102,773 97,418

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15.9%
(2019: 22.4%). The fluctuation in the weighted average
applicable tax rate arose mainly because of the change
in the relative profitability of the companies within the
Group.

Included in the tax losses as at 31 December 2020 was a
loss of RMB108,133,000 (2019: RMB79,054,000) that will
expire during the period from 2021 to 2025 (2019: 2020
to 2024), while other losses of RMB48,490,000 (2019:
RMB45,207,000) can be carried forward indefinitely.
The deferred tax benefit of such tax losses has not been
recognised as it is not probable that future taxable profit
will be available against which the unutilised tax losses
can be utilised, or the amounts attributable to specific
subsidiaries are insignificant.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

K

utf

B
ZN

S E SN EL LT SN 2
2R - BIAS R B ETE BB
AT HBEH -

it

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T R ARET T
Profit attributable to owners of the FEEBRAARREAES
Company 408,404 229,949
Weighted average number of ordinary & %17 & /A% &) HNHE F 158K
shares in issue (thousands) (F3t) 775,059 775,059

Basic earnings per share
(RMB per share)

BREANE(BRARE)

52.69 CentsZ 29.67 Centsm

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding
to assume conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares. The dilutive potential ordinary shares of the
Company mainly comprise the share options. The number
of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options less the number of shares
that could have been issued at fair value (determined as
the average market price per share for the year) for the
same total proceeds is the number of shares issued for no
consideration. The resulting number of shares issued for no
consideration is included in the weighted average number
of ordinary shares as the denominator for calculating
diluted earnings per share.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements
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13. EARN|NGS PER SHARE (CONTINUED) 13. Hﬁ u&ﬁ_ﬁ(%)
Diluted (continued) %%(%)
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® TR ARBETT

Profit attributable to owners of the FEEBRARREAESE
Company 408,404 229,949

Weighted average number of ordinary B 2317E @R IIEFHE

shares in issue (thousands) (F5H) 775,059 775,059
Adjustments assuming the exercise of (RREBARIEHRITERNFE(FEH)

share options (thousands) - -

Weighted average number of ordinary =tE&KEEEFIM LB

shares for diluted earnings miEFEHE(Fat)

per share (thousands) 775,059 775,059
Diluted earnings per share FRE SN (BRARE)

(RMB per share) 52.69 Centss 29.67 Cents%

14. NET FOREIGN EXCHANGE GAINS/(LOSSES) M EXRWE(BX)FE

The exchange differences credited/(charged) in the EAHABERPERS, (ER)WEN =
consolidated income statement are included as follows: HEEFEETNIEEA
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR® TR ARBETT

Other (losses)/income, net (Note 6) Hib () WA —F5E
(MI5Ee6) (3,360) 1,973
Net finance income/(expenses) (Note 7) J#8i5lkzs /(B ) (FizE7) 112,299 (26,860)

108,939 (24,887)
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15. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 15. EREEEREERR
EHEERBRTHEANSE

(i) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance i

sheet 7
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET ARBTT
Right-of-use assets ERAEEE
Office and warehouses MAERBE 7,630 5,152
Land use rights + b {F B A 37,627 38,525
45,257 43,677
Lease liabilities HEAE
Current mE 2,509 3,546
Non-current ERE 5,155 1,685
7,664 5,231
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the 2020 20200 E - EREEEZMT
financial year were RMB5,884,000 (2019: RMB1,413,000). AR 5,884,000 (20194 : AR

1,413,0007%) ©
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES

(CONTINUED)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated income
statement

The consolidated income statement shows the following
amounts relating to leases:

19,

(i)

AF BRI T

EREEERHEEAR

i

=y

pirns

)
/

AHMBERTEANS R

AHNBERTEBESENSEANT

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®EF T
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {FHEEE ZITE (KE8)
(Note 8)
Offices and warehouses MAEMEE 3,578 3,708
Land use rights + b {F FH A 898 899
4,476 4,607
Interest expense (Note 7) B H (fEET7) 172 340
Expenses related to low value and KEREHHEE 2 ERA(HES)
short-term leases (Note 8) 1,788 2,462

The total cash outflow for leases was RMB5,411,000
(2019: RMB6,431,000).

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various offices and warehouses. Rental
contracts are typically made for fixed periods of 6 months
to 5 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. The
lease agreements do not impose any covenants other than
the security interests in the leased assets that are held by
the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as security for
borrowing purposes.
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Notes 1o the Consolidated Financial Statements
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6. WX BERKME

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

124

Leasehold
improvements,
Plant and  office fumiture Motor Construction-in-
Buildings  machinery and equipment vehicles progress Total
HEmE
£ BR
BT RBEREE R "E EEIR =
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®Tr AREBTn ARETr AR%Tr AR%®Tn ARETR
Year ended 31 December  EZ2019%
2019 12B31BLEE
Opening net book amount  EEEHE 98,257 99,520 7,117 939 728,360 934,193
Additions RE - 4,506 934 834 424,670 430,944
Write-off (Note 6) M (Hse) - (11,592) - - - (11,592)
Disposals He (607) (3,001) - (79) - (3,687)
Depreciation (Note 8) FE(His) (5,207) (23,765) (2,856) (277) = (32,105)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 92,443 65,668 5,195 1,417 1,153,030 1,317,753
At 31 December 2019 R2019%128318
Cost A 154,544 404,801 27,320 4,827 1,153,030 1,744,522
Accumulated depreciation ZE (62,101) (339,133) (22,125) (3,410 - (426,769)
Net book amount REFE 92,443 65,668 5,195 1,417 1,153,030 1,317,753
Year ended 31 December 20205
2020 12B31BILEE
Opening net book amount ENEEFE 92,443 65,668 5,195 1,417 1,153,030 1,317,753
Additions NE - 2,483 4,831 1,806 464,909 474,029
Transfers b - 19,556 1,551 - (21,107) -
Transfer from intangible marsEER(HE17)
assets (Note 17) - - - - 12,000 12,000
Disposals HE - (81) - - - (81)
Depreciation (Note 8) HE(Wi38) (5,179) (9,718) (3,376) (487) - (18,760)
Closing net book amount FREMFE 87,264 77,908 8,201 2,736 1,608,832 1,784,941
At 31 December 2020 ®2020512A31R
Cost AR 154,544 425,219 33,702 6,633 1,608,832 2,228,930
Accumulated depreciation  EBitiE (67,280)  (347,311) (25,501) (3,897) - (443,989)
Net book amount BEEE 87,264 77,908 8,201 2,736 1,608,832 1,784,941
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

The Group’s buildings and buildings under construction,
totalling RMB115,613,000 (2019: RMB120,792,000) are
situated in Mainland China with lease terms of 50 years up
to December 2047, December 2048, May 2053, April 2054
and December 2064, respectively.

Depreciation expense of RMB11,571,000 (2019: RMB21,316,000)
has been charged in ‘cost of sales’ and RMB7,189,000 (2019:
RMB10,789,000) in ‘administrative expenses’.

An analysis of construction-in-progress is as follows:

AF BRI T

6. W% BEERKE

REEBBFREEBFEHAR
# 115,613,000 7t ( 2019 : A R ¥
120,792,0007T) + B A B R % iE 1
. E - AEAEES0F - D RIR2047F12
A - 2048412 - 2053458 - 20544
4R 2064%12 A °

mEBHRHEH AR®I11,571,000 T
(20194 : AR#21,316,0007T) 7 [ 38
ERA]FREZE  mMARK7,189,0007T
(20194 : AR#¥10,789,0007T) Bllst A
[{TEREA |H -

FEREIEDFTET
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT ARBTTT

Construction costs of buildings EFEERAK 28,349 28,349

Cost of leasehold improvements and  FAEW¥EE - BE R#E/K A
plant and machinery 1,580,483 1,124,681
1,608,832 1,153,030
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

1. BREE

Product
development
cost
EmBEERE
RMB’000
ARET T
Year ended 31 December 2019 HZE2019F12A31B8 LEE
Opening net book amount HA BRI # B 160,875
Additions NE 54,534
Amortisation (Note 8) B3 (MI5E8) (17,795)
Provision for impairment (Note 8) BB R R (H7E8) (5,000)
Closing net book amount HARBR TR B 192,614
At 31 December 2019 #2019%12H31H
Cost BN 348,844
Accumulated amortisation BT (126,708)
Accumulated impairment Z25HRE (29,522)
Net book amount B EE 192,614
Year ended 31 December 2020 HZE2020F12A831BILEE
Opening net book amount BYREFE 192,614
Additions NE 124,485
Transfers to construction-in-progress R SR TE (K 16)

(Note 16) (12,000)
Amortisation (Note 8) B 8H (M3E8) (23,315)
Closing net book amount B4R BRE R E 281,784

At 31 December 2020 720205128318
Cost BN 456,329
Accumulated amortisation SR (150,023)
Accumulated impairment 2ERE (24,522)
Net book amount BRMEFE 281,784

Notes: P aE -

(a) Amortisation of RMB23,315,000 (2019: RMB17,795,000) (a) AR ¥23,315,000 0 2 #45 (2019 : A
is included in ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated income R¥17,795,00070) £ & HFFIE R B &t
statement. ATSHERARIA -

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2019, provision for (b) HZE201912A31HILFE - BFE&

impairment of intangible assets of RMB5,000,000 had
been included in “cost of sales” in the consolidated income

statement.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

AF BRI T

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 18. B A R EEFT A & ETE
PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE HttireWEzemE
INCOME =3
Financial assets at fair value through profitorloss (2) AR BEFABER < T &
Debt instruments that do not meet the criteria for TREZHERAIEZ AR BETAR
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. iFs REnEBEIAGRARBEE
Az o
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARBFT
Current assets REBEE
Wealth management products BEEEEMR 30,001 -
Financial assets at fair value through other 0 BAABEFARMZES K
comprenensive income mLEREE
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive RARBEAAEMGEKEZ2RE
income comprise equity securities which are not held for ERETHFHEEREZREAFZS  RE
trading, and which the Group has irrevocably elected at EEER YL HERK A HE 22

initial recognition to recognise in this category. These
are strategic investments and the Group considers this
classification to be more relevant.

RUERH AR - ZFRBFR/BER
B RAEERBUEDREBERIE -

2020 2019
RMB'000 RMB’'000
AR#T T ARETTT
Non-current assets FIRBEE
Unlisted equity securities JEE TR ARE S 200 200
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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19. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 9. TE€mMIE
2020 2019
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
BE afE BE =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR¥TR ARBTT ARETR
Current portion: TENER D
Interest rate swaps (note a) FIE G # (ffizta) - 3,380 276 1,172
Forward foreign exchange ZEHISNES H
contracts (note b) (MIsEDb) 1,177 - = =
Total et 1,177 3,380 276 1,172
(a) Interest rate swap contracts () FEEHELD
The Group entered into interest rate swap contracts to REE T EE R L LARERAR S E
mitigate the exposure to the interest rate risk associated BEERZOT ERE o
with the Group’s borrowings.
The notional principal amounts of the outstanding M2020F12 8318 » MALENFEE
interest rate swap contracts at 31 December 2020 were BERMRTESFE A ARRS, 752,198,000
RMB8,752,198,000 (2019: RMB1,607,464,000), for 7t (2019 : AR#¥1,607,464,0007T) + &
which RMB7,116,056,000 (2019: RMB411,598,000) and F AR#7,116,056,0007T (2019 : AR
RMB1,636,142,000 (2019: RMB1,195,866,000) were 411,598,0007T ) FA 70 $1 )4 i 2R 17 R £ 4
entered into for the purpose of managing LIBOR and HIBOR BEEF X - &k AKRM1,636,142,000 7T
floating rates respectively. (2019 : AK#1,195,866,0007T ) AR %4
BBRITRIZES SOZENFIZE -
The fixed interest rates of swap contracts under LIBOR MW2020F 12 A31H @ mARITHEER
(with spread) and HIBOR (without spread) range between B(EHME) RBEBBRITRERE (FEF
2.65% and 2.67% (2019: 2.40% and 2.82%) and between Z)NEBNEDR B2.65%E2.67%
1.08% and 1.73% (2019: 1.73%) respectively. (2019 : 2.40% &£ 2.82% ) X2 1.08% &
1.73%(2019 : 1.73%) °
(0) Forward foreign exchange contracts () EHINES F

128

The Group entered into some simple forward contracts.
The total notional amount of these simple contracts
remained outstanding as at 31 December 2020 was
RMB81,339,000 (2019: nil).

EcoGreen International Group Limited | A5 EIfR & EHR A A

AEBAVEZHEERAEGR @ 25M
BARMN2020F 12 A31 B N ARTAK
LRESEEHABAREES,339,0007T
(2019 : &) -



Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

AF BRI T

20 BWERRKEKRRE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBT T

Trade receivables B U AR R 1,033,906 1,003,874
Bills receivable EWEE - 1,178
1,033,906 1,005,052
Less: Loss allowance B BB R (5.861) (5.673)
1,028,045 999,379

The carrying amounts of trade receivables and bills
receivable approximate their fair values.

The credit period granted by the Group to its customers
is between 60 and 90 days. For certain customers with
good credit history, an extended period up to 180 days is
allowed. The aging analysis of trade receivables and bills
receivable based on invoice date is as follows:

RUEFREREEROEREDAE
BHEE -

AEBEETHEHEP ZEEH—KR60290
R-HBRERFEEERLNER &8
BEFEE180AMEEH - YRR RIE
WERERBEEZAMZRESTWT ¢

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARBTT

0 to 30 days 0E30K 245,263 224,560
31 to 60 days 31E60K 200,441 201,455
61 to 90 days 61%E90K 186,023 149,044
91 to 120 days 91&E120K 168,173 173,054
121 to 150 days 1212 150K 135,932 132,425
151 to 180 days 1512180k 84,019 97,705
181 to 365 days 1812365K 12,960 22,936
Over 365 days 365K 1,095 3,873

1,033,906 1,005,052
Less: Loss allowance R B IR (5.861) (5,673)

1,028,045 999,379
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20. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND BILLS RECEIVABLE

130

(CONTINUED)

The loss allowance for trade receivables and bills
receivables as at 31 December reconcile to the opening loss
allowance as follows:

20 EWEREEWRERE »)

HE12A31ANEKRRLEREED

BEARGERATNEEREZHE 0
-

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBT T

Opening loss allowance at 1 January 1 81 BV ESERE 5,673 5,211
Net loss allowance for FEW R S E B B AT IR F 8

trade receivables 188 462
Closing loss allowance at 31 December 712 A31H 8 EIRE BB E 5,861 5,673

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables. Note
3.1(a) set out the details about the calculation of the
allowance.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables
and bills receivable are denominated in the following
currencies:

AEBEEBC(EEM KRS LR FIIRIA
THETARZEERES L RBHEER
BRELESR ARAERENFARG
BHERHEE3. 1(a) ©

AEENEYKER KRR RN REE
TSI EMREN

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARBTTT

Renminbi AR 957,834 939,846
US dollar ETT 69,313 59,533
Euro dollar B 7& 898 -

1,028,045 999,379

Information about the loss allowance of trade receivables
and bills receivable and the Group’s exposure to credit risk,
foreign currency risk and interest rate risk can be found in
Note 3.1.
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

AF BRI T

=, =5
21. PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 21. TR HAth FE WK

2020 2019
RMB‘000 RMB’'000
ARET T ARETF T

Prepayments for purchases of raw HERERAFENR
materials 241,211 179,582
Prepayments for construction-in-progress £ & T2 ¥& - 5% 29,379 32,116
Input value-added tax recoverable a] U [O] o 18 15 (E 7 156,682 124,588
Others Hth 8,150 24,906
435,422 361,192

Less: non-current portion B IEREN IR
Prepayments SELNES (29,379) (32,116)

Prepayments and other receivables TE A5 3R B E A B UL 3R
— current portion — RENEND 406,043 329,076
The carrying amounts of other receivables approximate HpEU R ERESAEAREEESR
their fair values and are mainly denominated in RMB. FEUARKTIE -
1
22. INVENTORIES 22. B8

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®TR ARBTTT

Raw materials R 186,751 126,902
Work-in-progress s 836 762
Finished goods =K@ 70,402 76,053
257,989 203,717
Less: Provision for impairment S R E R (6,444) (7,116)
251,545 196,601

The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included
in ‘cost of sales’ amounted to RMB1,805,930,000 (2019:
RMB1,753,003,000).

During the year ended 31 December 2020, a reversal of
provision for impairment of inventories of RMB672,000
(2019: provision of RMB764,000) has been included in
‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated income statement.

EREAX KA [HERAIZTFEK
A ANR#1,805,930,0007T(2019 ¢ A
R #1,753,003,0007C) ©

R2020F 12 A31HIEFERN - ARK
672,0007T 2 7 & BB B # B4 (2019 :
AR#764,000T 2 BB IR) BT ASE
BERER 2 THEKRARIA ©
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23. PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM

132

BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

2. CEBACRTER - &

HROEX BRERR
EEEY

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB'000

AR®T T ARBFT

Pledged bank deposits B2 BITER 88,483 85,664
Structured bank deposits ERBMRITER - 503,000
Other short-term bank deposits H 48 BRI 1 5K - 10,734
Cash and cash equivalents RERREFEY 1,460,152 958,126
1,548,635 1,557,524

The carrying amounts of pledged bank deposits, short-term
bank deposits, cash and cash equivalents are denominated
in the following currencies:

RERBZBITHER - BHRRITER
BeEMBSESEVNRABELAEEERN
RN ¢

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®T ARETT

Renminbi AR 1,521,802 1,532,609
Hong Kong dollar BT 5,235 5,986
US dollar ETT 20,513 17,766
Euro [&r 28 1,083 1,161
Others Hih 2 2
1,548,635 1,557,524

As at 31 December 2020, the effective interest rate on
pledged bank deposits was 1.39% (2019: 1.48%) per
annum. The pledged bank deposits of the Group have an
average maturity of 178 days (2019: 198 days).

As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest rate on
structured bank deposits was 3.67% per annum. The
structured bank deposits of the Group matured in 360
days.

As at 31 December 2019, the effective interest rate on
other short-term bank deposits was 1.35% per annum.
The other short-term bank deposits of the Group have an
average maturity of 183 days.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's bank deposits,
and cash and cash equivalents balances of approximately
RMB1,521,567,000 (2019: RMB1,532,241,000) are
deposited with banks in the PRC. The conversion of RMB
denominated balances into foreign currencies and the
remittance of such foreign currencies denominated bank
balances and cash out of the PRC are subject to the
relevant rules and regulations of foreign exchange control
promulgated by the PRC government.
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$RITIFARFE360K 14 ZIH] o
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¥ 1,521,567,000 & ( 2019 : A R
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23.

24,

()

(D)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial statements

PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS, SHORT-TERM
BANK DEPOSITS, CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (conrimuen)

At 31 December 2020, bank balances of RMB88,483,000
(2019: RMB85,664,000) have been pledged to banks to
secure credit facilities granted to certain of the Group's
subsidiaries.

The cash and cash equivalents are not exposed to material
credit risk.

SHARE CAPITAL, PREMIUM AND SHARE
OPTIONS

23.

24.

AF BRI T

CEBEZBTER &
HBRTER Be kB
TEEY o)

2020412 A31H - AR¥88,483,000
7T(2019 : AR#S5,664,0007T) 2 81T

FRETUERERAEBEXLMER
ARRITRSIEERE 2EM -

RekReEBYLRAEANEER

B o
2

BAE - mERERE

Share capital - Ordinary shares of HK$0.1 each (@) BRRA—SREBEIETLZE
8 Ak
Nominal value
Number of of ordinary
shares shares
Authorised: EE RHEE LREREE
‘000 HK$'000
F& BT
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 $201941 818 -
and 31 December 2020 2019 12A318 &
2020412 A31H 2,000,000 200,000
Fully paid Value of
shares ordinary Share
EHR shares premium Total
Fully paid: 28 ROBE TEREE RORE =1
‘000 RMB'000  RMB’'000  RMB'000
Fit ARBTT ARBTT AR®TRT
At 1 January 2019, 20191818 -
31 December 2019 and 2019512831 K&
31 December 2020 202012 A31H 775,059 75,380 341,876 417,256
Share options () HBBARIE

Share options are granted to directors and to selected
employees. The exercise price of the granted options is
equal to the market price of the shares on the date of the
grant or the average closing prices of the shares for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of the offer
of grant, whichever is higher. The share options would vest
progressively from the grant date to the third year after
the grant (the vesting period) provided that the relevant
employee remained employed by the Group. Share options
are exercisable up to 10 years after the grant date. The
Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase
or settle the share options in cash.

EEMEYEHB T ERBAAE - AT
ETMBERENTEERASNRE TS
BEOmEXEEREARMNABEARSA
By FEOWRME  UWREERE-F
BERECRHNENEE=F8RAHT
H)mART EHREHEELVEAE B
REENESR - BREATNK LA B
FT10FEMATE o AN 5 B3 80K E 3k iE T
B% - R BRI SENERE -
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24. SHARE CAPITAL, PREMIUM AND SHARE
UPTIUNS (CONTINUED)

[D] Snafe DD“DHS (continued)

Movements in the number of share options outstanding
and their related weighted average exercise prices are as

2. B - nBRERE

() HERRHE #)

RTENERERE RARAMNETS
TEBNESHNT

follows:
2020 2019

Average Average

exercise price exercise price
per share Number of per share Number of
option share options option  share options
BRIERE BRE  SREBRE BiE
TEfE 4= T8 &8
HKS ‘000 HK$ ‘000
7 it B Tt
At 1 January and 31 December  ®1A1HX12A31H 1.70 24,777 1.70 24,777

Out of the total 24,777,000 (2019: 24,777,000)
outstanding share options as at 31 December 2020,
24,777,000 (2019: 24,777,000) share options were fully
vested and exercisable.

Share options outstanding at the end of the year have the
following expiry dates and exercise prices:

2020512 A318  HARITEABERE
A2 524,777,00002019 ¢ 24,777,000)
fa - H & HH 24,777,000 ( 2019 :
24,777,000)1p 2 Bk ER T2 BB A
FATE o

FEFERERITERBRENSIE A MITE
BT

Original Adjusted
exercise exercise 2020 2019
price per price per Number of Number of
share option  share option  share options  share options
SRERE SREBRE (thousands) (thousands)
Expiry date 38R RiafTEE  RBABTHKE BREYA RS A
HK$ HKS$ (F&) (F3t)
BT BT (Note) (Note)
(Note) GES) (FisE)
(FsE)
30 November 2024 2024114308 2.24 1.70 24,777 24,777

Note: The issue of bonus shares was completed on 13 August
2015 and 12 July 2016. Pursuant to the respective terms of
the share option schemes, adjustments were made to the
exercise price of the share and the number of shares entitled
to be subscribed for under the outstanding share options as
a result of the completion of the bonus issue.
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25. OTHER RESERVES 5. H bk
Capital
redemption Share
Capital Contributed  Statutory reserve options
reserve surplus reserves (Note d) equity Currency
(Note a) (Note b) (Note ¢) RAEm reserve translation
Rafits  EMBR HELRE e BRE reserve Total
GES) (rzth) (ztc) GED) RAGE Eiff &3t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARRTR ARETR ARBTR ARETR ARETn ARBTR  ARETR
At 1 January 2019 201951818 492 9,500 133,924 1 10,774 69 155,470
Currency translation differences EiZE = = = = = (9 (9
Transfer from retained earnings RERHNER - - 542 - - - 542
Balance at 31 December 2019 R20195128318 268 492 9,500 134,466 m 10,774 60 156,003
At 1 January 2020 R202051R18 492 9,500 134,466 m 10,774 60 156,003
Currency translation differences  EXZE - - - - - (338) (338)
Transfer from retained earnings ~ REZFER - - 872 - - - 82
Balance at 31 December 2020 R2020512A31A 268 492 9,500 135,338 m 10,774 (278) 156,537
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25. OTHER RESERVES (conrmvuen)

Notes:

136

(a)

Capital reserve of the Group mainly represents the
difference between the nominal value of the shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the share exchange on 16
February 2004 over the nominal value of the share capital of
the Company issued in exchange therefor.

Contributed surplus represents the capital contribution from
an executive Director and an indirect substantial shareholder
of the Company, as part of a reorganisation exercise of the
Group.

According to the articles of association of the relevant
subsidiaries established in Mainland China and the Mainland
China rules and regulations, Mainland China subsidiaries are
required to transfer not less than 10% of their net profit as
stated in their annual financial statements prepared under
Mainland China accounting regulations to statutory reserves
before the corresponding Mainland China subsidiaries can
distribute any dividend. Such a transfer is not required
when the amount of statutory reserves reaches 50% of
the corresponding subsidiaries’ registered capital. The
statutory reserves shall only be used to make up losses of
the corresponding subsidiaries, to expand the corresponding
subsidiaries’ production operations, or to increase the
capital of the corresponding subsidiaries. Upon approval by
resolutions of the corresponding subsidiaries’ shareholders
in general meetings, the corresponding subsidiaries may
convert their statutory reserves into registered capital and
issue bonus capital to existing owners in proportion to their
existing ownership structure. As at 31 December 2019, the
amount of statutory reserves of Xiamen Doingcom Chemical
Co., Ltd, Xiamen Sinotek Enterprise Development Co., Ltd
and Xiamen Doingcom Biotechnology Co. Ltd. had reached
50% of its registered capital and accordingly, no further
transfer to its statutory reserves has been made.

The capital redemption reserve relates to the cancellation of
the Company’s own shares.
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26. TRADE PAYABLES AND BILLS PAYABLE 6. ENERARERNERE
2020 2019
RMB‘000 RMB’'000
ARBT ARETT
Trade payables FETER X 67,654 73,098
Bills payable EEE 256,736 249,824
324,390 322,922

The aging analysis of trade payables and bills payable based

BAEFEENERREBEZRZAHZEK

on invoice date were as follows: BoOMMT :
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR®TR ARET T
0 to 30 days 0%E30K 81,209 46,044
31 to 60 days 31£260K 110,753 107,171
61 to 90 days 61290k 57,635 82,358
91 to 180 days 91& 180K 67,996 79,459
181 to 365 days 181E365K 3,321 4,580
Over 365 days HBiB365K 3,476 3,310
324,390 322,922

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables and
bills payable are denominated in the following currencies:

AEENEMNEARENRENREE

ATENE¥ RER

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR¥ET ARET T

Renminbi AR 319,846 318,841
US dollar ETT 4,544 4,081
324,390 322,922

The carrying amounts of trade payables and bills payable

approximate their fair values.

Bills payable are secured by pledged bank deposits.

ENEFARENRERAEREAAE

BERE -

FEN RIBLARITIE SRR -

Annual Report 2020 | —Z—Z4Fx® 13/



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B BF BT B R Y ot

21. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 2. BEtER R HttEA K
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TR ARETT

Payable for construction costs and JEREERARBEYE -

property, plant and equipment MR NEREEMNZAX 15,606 6,887
Contract liabilities AHERE 1,816 2,330
Output value-added tax payable FEA $5TE 1 (E 11,082 6,305
Accruals for administrative, JEETATIR » $HER

selling and marketing expenses TISHEEE B 39,003 31,243

67,507 46,765
The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other ANEBBEASEE R EMENZHER
payables are denominated in the following currencies: SEEUTHNEE AER :
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR®TR ARBTTT

Renminbi AR 58,939 39,241
UsS dollar eV 182 157
Hong Kong dollar PETT 8,386 7,367
67,507 46,765
The carrying amounts of the Group’s accruals and other REEHEAERREMENKREE
payables approximate their fair values. HERNREBERES -
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[+
28. BORROWINGS 28. fHE
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR T ARETT
Non-current JEFRE
Bank borrowings RITIEE 1,376,402 546,590
Current Bl HA 7% Eh
Bank borrowings RITIEE 860,519 1,351,189
Total borrowings fEEmsE 2,236,921 1,897,779
At 31 December 2020, the Group’s borrowings were M20204E12 8318 - BEEMER
repayable as follows: BN -
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
Within 1 year or repayable on demand —fF ARSIz ERK(EE 860,519 1,351,189
Between 1 and 2 years —FEWF 480,055 380,300
Between 2 and 5 years MEERF 896,347 166,290
2,236,921 1,897,779
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28 BURRUWINGS (CONTINUED)

The borrowings were repayable, without taking into
account the repayable on demand clauses, as follows:

28. B8«

B

RETRIBERKEENGER  EEMNER
R

-

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETE

Within 1 year —FPURN 860,519 1,344,047
Between 1 and 2 years —FEWF 480,055 387,442
Between 2 and 5 years REZERF 896,347 166,290

2,236,921 1,897,779

The effective annual interest rates at the balance sheet
date were as follows:

REFB ZERFH R

2020 2019

Bank borrowings RITEE

3.17% 4.61%

The carrying amounts of borrowings approximate their fair
values.

The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated
in the following currencies:

EROEmMERE AL BEBEE -

EXRNEMEEUATIIEEREN

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
ARMT T ARBETT

Renminbi AR 507,698 503,092
Us dollar ETT 1,496,579 678,036
HK dollar B 232,644 716,651

2,236,921 1,897,779
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28 BURRUWINGS (CONTINUED)

The Group has the following undrawn borrowing facilities:

AF BRI T

28. B8 (@)

AEEAR TIRERERBE :

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFTT

Floating rate AN
— expiring within one year ——FREH 387,725 234,185
— expiring beyond one year —— & A L5 H 29,204 140,641
416,929 374,826

Fixed rate E R
— expiring within one year ——FREH 113,137 44,869
— expiring beyond one year ——F LA EFIE 9,650 -
122,787 44,869
539,716 419,695

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has provided
corporate guarantees to support banking facilities granted
to certain subsidiaries amounting to RMB1,553,900,000
(2019: RMB1,248,578,000).

Bank borrowings and bills payable of RMB756,710,000
(2019: RMB873,336,000) are supported by corporate
guarantees provided by the Company and bank
borrowings and bills payable of RMB1,736,947,000 (2019:
RMB1,274,267,000) are supported by cross guarantees
between subsidiaries.

The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the balance
sheet dates are as follows:

M2020F12A318 ' ARAREFE
L fff B A & A R ¥ 1,553,900,000 J©
(2019: AR#1,248,578,0007T) KR 1T
BEEEEE R RER -

RITERRENEEART56,710,0007T
(2019 : A K ¥ 873,336,000 7T ) LA A
AEIR RTERAREMNERA
R ¥ 1,736,947,000 7T (2019 : A R ¥
1,274,267,0007C) LAMT B A RIS EHELR ©

REER  NEBNERENXZEH R
BHEHNEERARMAENRRIT

2020 2019

RMB’'000 RMB'000

ARET AREEF T

6 months or less 618 A A T 1,917,882 1,660,349
6-12 months 6-121E A 165,749 237,430
12 months or more 1218 A g A £ 153,290 =
2,236,921 1,897,779
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29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 29.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current
tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
deferred income taxes relate to the same fiscal authority.
The following balances, determined after appropriate

EEFTEHIE

ERAENNTRIOCERHAEES
BB RELRE  HETHMBHEE
MBESRFA-HEHE - A SET
ISHEEMABIHEN - ZEHERK
AER-—EHRARHENRETEMSHE

offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet: EEZERENITAT :
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
ARET AREFTT
Deferred income tax assets to be Bi@ 1218 A 12 U @ HYIE T
recovered after more than 12 months FiEMEE 5,131 4,907
Deferred income tax liabilities to be HBiE121E A & W B /YT
settled after more than 12 months S aE (100,250) (89,250)

The gross movements in the deferred income tax assets and
liabilities are as follows:

BEEMSHEERBENEESHNT :

2020 2019

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARETTT

At 1 January M1A1R (84,343) (74,711)
Charged to the consolidated income  #E&HFAERA

statement (Note 12) e (MsE12) (10,776) (9,632)

At 31 December M12A31H (95,119) (84,343)
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29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (conmmuen)
Deferred income tax assets

AF BRI T

29, IMEREHIE o

EEFEMEE
Provision Tax loss Total
B s EE &
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR®ETT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2019 201941 A1H - 4,889 4,889
Credited/(charged) to the Bi(f55)

consolidated & pEFE R

income statement 750 (732) 18
At 31 December 2019 and M2019F12H31H

1 January 2020 20201 A1H 750 4,157 4,907
Credited to the consolidated BrRAFAEER

income statement - 224 224
At 31 December 2020 72020412 A31H 750 4,381 5,131

Dererred income tax liapilities

BEERGSRAE

Withholding tax

RAFEHR
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARET T ARETT

At 1 January W1A1H 89,250 79,600
Charged to the consolidated income &G AEEXR

statement &3 11,000 9,650
At 31 December M12H31H 100,250 89,250

At 31 December 2020, the Group has unused tax losses of
RMB183,172,000 (2019: RMB149,448,000) available for
offsetting against future profits, and a deferred income
tax asset of RMB4,381,000 (2019: RMB4,157,000) has
been recognised in respect of such losses. No deferred
income tax asset has been recognised in respect of a total
of RMB35,542,000 (2019: RMB27,631,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

K2020F12A31H » AEBBEREBAH
TR AR #183,172,0007T (2019
A R #149,448,000 7T ) A A 3 84 K
RAE - ML EEEE EREER
SHEEAREA4,381,0005T (2019 :
AR ¥ 4,157,000 7T ) ° B R K K F
EROATIERE At RxERAE K
A R #35,542,0007C (2019 : AR
27,631,000 WELEFT SR B E ©
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29. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (conrivuen) 29.

30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30.

144

{
f
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peferred income tax liabilities (continued)

At 31 December 2020, deferred income tax liabilities
of RMB189,375,000 (2019: RMB168,741,000) has not
been recognised for the withholding tax and other taxes
that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
certain subsidiaries as the Company controls the dividend
policies of these subsidiaries and it is not probable that
these subsidiaries would distribute these earnings in the
foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2020, unremitted
earnings amounted to RMB1,893,751,000 (2019:
RMB1,687,413,000).

FEEFEHE o

BREMGEMAaE )

K2020F12A31H - AEBEEMIEH T
MEBARAKERE RSB AREN
RRRRT 2 ARERFBEIEL SR -
REBEW RS THE QT RERF
7B T 32 A AR 30 P 45 B A0 H th B TR R
RIELEMSH B EARK189,375,000
£ (2019 : AR#168,741,0007T) ° A
2020F 12 AT B ARERKZE S LA
K #1,893,751,000 7T (2019 : AR ¥
1,687,413,0007T) °

TR T H(RER)

Financial
Financial assets at
Financial assets at fair value
assets at fair value through other
amortised through the  comprehensive
costs profit & loss income Total
NAREE
FEAREH EOAEETA
REHAAR TABRN  HitfekEz
GTEZEREE SREE tREE L
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥ETR ARETTR ARBTR ARBTR
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12A318
Financial assets as per balance sheet BELEESERNEREE
Trade and other receivables excluding  FEIRERF B E A e Uiz
non-financial assets (TREESRAE) 1,031,636 - - 1,031,636
Amounts due from related companies JEM B R
(Note 35(b)) (F13£35(0) 686 - - 686
Pledged bank deposits (Note 23) BEB R (HE23) 88,483 - - 88,483
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) Be kAL SEM(M323) 1,460,152 - - 1,460,152
Financial assets at fair value through BRLEBEG AR EA NS
other comprehensive income (Note 18) 24 REE(M18) - - 200 200
Financial assets at fair value through BOREBEFABRZ
profit or loss (Note 18) SREE(fE18) - 30,001 - 30,001
Derivative financial instruments (Note 19) #7448 T E(F#:19) - 1177 - 111
Total @t 2,580,957 31,178 200 2,612,335
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30. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 30 EM IR (RER) »)

(CONTINUED)
Financial
Other liabilities at
financial fair value
liabilities at through the
amortised cost  profit and loss Total
Hit UAREETE
REBERATE BHEBHFA
ZHtEREE BRfNEREaE #t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBT T ARBT T
At 31 December 2020 R2020%12A31A
Financial liabilities as per balance sheet RELZERBEZNLBEE
Borrowings (Note 28) g (FizE28) 2,236,921 - 2,236,921
Trade and other payables e BRI R e 3R
excluding non-financial liabilities (TBfEFLHAR) 364,997 - 364,997
Derivative financial instruments TESETA(HE19)
(Note 19) - 3,380 3,380
Lease liabilities (Note 15) REAEE5) 7,664 - 7,664
Total st 2,609,582 3,380 2,612,962
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30. EM T A (RER) »)

(CONTINUED)
Financial
Financial assets at
Financial assets at fair value
assets at fair value through other
amortised through the comprehensive
costs profit & loss income Total
AR BE
SEREEY RAREEFA
TR SRR SABEN  Htralse
STECSREE CREAE SRAE e
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFT AREFT ARETT
At 31 December 2019 R2019%12A31R
Financial assets as per balance sheet HBEZEESERNLHEE
Trade and other receivables excluding ~ FEMERZ R E e
non-financial assets (T BEFLREE) 1,018,935 S = 1,018,935
Amount due from a related company el AR
(Note 35(b)) (Mi&E35(b)) 39 - - 39
Pledged bank deposits (Note 23) BEMzRTER(NE23) 85,664 = - 85,664
Short-term bank deposits (Note 23) REEAER(HF23) 513,734 - = 513,734
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 23) Be kAL EEM(MEE23) 958,126 = = 958,126
Financial assets at fair value through BRLEBEG ARG AN
other comprehensive income (Note 18) 24 BEBZE(Mz18) = - 200 200
Derivative financial instruments (Note 19) #1442 ® T A (Ki:E19) - 276 = 276
Total Foh 2,576,498 276 200 2,576,974
Financial
Other liabilities at
financial fair value
liabilities at through the
amortised cost  profit and loss Total
2 WAREERE
R AR 2 BEZFHA
JHMSHERE BaNemas Bat
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT ARET T
At 31 December 2019 ®2019%12A31A
Financial liabilities as per balance sheet RELZEEERNERER
Borrowings (Note 28) fER(M3E28) 1,897,779 - 1,897,779
Trade and other payables FER R R A MR
excluding non-financial liabilities (TeEkeRAaR) 347,004 = 347,004
Amount due to a related company JEf R 7 7R
(Note 35(b)) (BirEE35(b)) 2,309 - 2,309
Amount due to a director (Note 35(d)) BN —ZEFIE(If5£35(d)) 26 - 26
Derivative financial instruments (Note 19) #7448 T E(Fi519) - 1,172 1,172
Lease liabilities (Note 15) HEBREKE5) 5,231 = 5,231
Total st 2,252,349 1,172 2,253,521
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31. CASH FLOW INFORMATION

Notes to the Gonsalidated Financial Statements
& o B 75 R I ot

3. REREFR

(@) Cash generated from operations (1) ReXBELEZRS
2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR¥T R ARETTT
Profit for the year F [ F) 408,425 229,040
Adjustments for: FHERIEE ¢
- Taxation (Note 12) — BB (HIEE12) 102,773 97,418
— Depreciation of property, plant and — ¥ BEMREZINE
equipment (Note 16) (MzE16) 18,760 32,105
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets —FREEEZTE
(Note 15) (Bi#aE15) 4,476 4,607
— Loss on disposals of property, plant —HEME BERKREZ
and equipment (Note 6) E518 (M zE6) 81 694
- Write-off of property, plant and —WE - BB RRE 2 M
equipment (Note 6) (Ht3E6) - 11,592
— Amortisation of intangible assets —EREEEHEME17)
(Note 17) 23,315 17,795
— Provision for impairment of — B EERE
intangible assets (Note 17) (MIEE17) - 5,000
— (Reversal of)/provision for impairment —1F&REEE(RIE) HiE
of inventories (Note 22) (Mi7E22) (672) 764
- Net loss allowance on financial assets — & gI&E BB 12
(Note 20) JFEE (M15E20) 188 462
— Interest income (Note 7) — F B A (Hi5E7) (34,802) (41,755)
— Interest expense (Note 7) — R SR (MEET7) 46,144 57,149
— Share of profit of an associate —ERBENEN R
(Note 11) (Pg&ET1) (604) (1,638)
— Net fair value losses on derivative —TESRMTANAAEE
financial instruments (Note 6) SEREE K (P7E6) 1,307 796
- Exchange differences —ERER (76,486) 19,460
Operating profit before working LEECEEH 2 LEFE
capital changes 492,905 433,489
Changes in working capital: EEESEE
— Inventories —-FE (54,272) 48,413
— Trade receivables and bills receivable — —FEUIRF M EUZ 1% (28,854) (56,889)
— Prepayments and other receivables — FEAS 3R R L At FE WK (93,014) (92,041)
— Amounts due from related companies  — [ Yg B8 5 7018 (647) 928
— Amount due to a related company — JE{S AR 5 (2,309) 1,665
— Trade payables and bills payable —ERESRREMNZE 1,468 94,100
— Accruals and other payables —EETB AR EMER R 2,945 (9,570)
Cash generated from operations REEREL 7RG 318,222 420,095
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B BF BT B R Y ot

31. GASH FLOW INFORMATION (conminuen) 3. BERER »)

(D) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (1) WMEEDHELWEE - WK
activities JUEN
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities TR AEERBREZTHELERBZ
arising from financing activities. BE o

Liabilities from
financing activities

RETDELZER
Amount Borrowings Borrowings
due to due within due after Leases
a director 1 year 1 year liabilities Total
et — —FHR —E0%
£t BIEBER HBNER BEAE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR

As at 1 January 2020 R2020E181A 26 1,351,189 546,590 5,231 1,903,036
Cash flows Ben (26) (863,179) 1,266,197 (3,623) 399,369
Acquisition - leases BE-HE - - - 5,884 5,884
Foreign exchange [EH A%

adjustments - (17,967) (58,519) - (76,486)
Other non-cash movements i 3FE 428 - 390,476 (377,866) 172 12,782
As at 31 December 2020  #2020%12A31H - 860,519 1,376,402 7,664 2,244,585

Liabilities from
financing activities

REFHELC AR
Amount Borrowings Borrowings
due to due within due after Leases
a director 1 year 1 year liabilities Total
fER— —FHR —F IR
BEE HEmER SERa R HEBMRE CHI
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ANRET T ARETT ARETT ARETT

As at 1 January 2019 R201951A18 30 972,007 743,743 = 1,715,780

Recognised on adoption ~ RMEEEKREE

of HKFRS 16 HIZ 1654 R = = = 7,447 7,447
Cash flows Behk (4) (51,575) 207,760 (3,629) 152,552
Acquisition - leases BE-HE - - - 1,413 1,413
Foreign exchange EH AR

adjustments - 12,995 6,465 - 19,460
Other non-cash movements Hi R4 2% = 417,762 (411,378) = 6,384
As at 31 December 2019  A2019%12831H 26 1,351,189 546,590 5,231 1,903,036
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

32. DIVIDENDS

A final dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December
2020 of HK5.7 cents per share, totalling approximately
of RMB37,303,000, is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. These consolidated financial
statements do not reflect such dividend payable.

32.

AF BRI T

Hﬁ /%\

REBERITZBRRBFAS - BEE
20209128318 L FEHIK KRS
FRE5. 77840l - & HEAARKE37,303,000
T o bt A BB TS R 3R 30 4 = R bt R A AR

5 o
B

2020 2019
RMB’'000 RMB'000
AR® T AREFT
Interim dividend paid of HK1.8 cents EIRF AR B SR E AR 1.8 1L
(2019: HK1.7 cents) per ordinary share (2019 : 1.77840L) 12,592 11,893
Proposed final dividend of HK5.7 cents BORAREII S B AR AR S. 778l
(2019: HK4.8 cents) per ordinary share (2019 : 4.8%1L) 37,303 33,992
49,895 45,885

33. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities (2019: nil).

34. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

33.

HREE

R2020F12A318 ' AEBEBETAE
AZHABE(2019 : #) o

3. BEAREIE

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥F T ARBEF T
Capital commitments contracted RFERREEERETHN
but not provided for at end of BARMEZNOT :
the reporting period are as follows:
— Construction-in-progress and —HEEIRUARYE  BE
property, plant and equipment B 42,405 236,236
— Product development projects —E R 52,790 31,430
95,195 267,666
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NOtes to the Consolidated Financial statements

A BB 15

e

35. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 35. B AR5
The Company is 36.6% owned by Marietta Limited RATF)Z36.6%%Em B —FEREEE
(incorporated in the British Virgin Islands) which is owned REZEBRLABHESFMKILZ 2A]—
by Mr. Yang Yirong. Marietta Limited%4& °
i =
Sales and purchases of goods and services (1) Bk EHE RE
The following transactions were carried out with related HRARE A EITOR ST ¢
parties:
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®BT T AR®ETF T
Sales of goods to a related company & REE T @S 8,428 7,376
Sales of goods to an associate EmEE T ,p%géjj— 8,347 10,345
Purchase of goods from related BmiREE g @A
companies 275 2,972
Purchases of goods from an associate & @458 B @AM 5 9,375 16,285
Subcontracting fee payable to an JEfEEE T 2 ML E
associate - 1,359
In the opinion of the Directors, the above transactions were BEZA MRS TIRAERIE S %
carried out in the normal course of the Group's business, BBRERES  WIKREHRS 2 GRGHE
and conducted at terms mutually agreed by the respective 17 o
parties.
(0) Amounts due from/to related companies () FEUR FEfT AR 5 218
2020 2019
RMB‘000 RMB’'000
AR¥F T ARBTT
Amounts due from related companies f& Y BB 75 3008
— an associate — B 445 -
- a related company L NGl 241 39
Amount due to a related company JFE 1<t BBt 5 708
— an associate — B - 2,309
As at 31 December 2020, the balances are unsecured, 73/\2020¢12H31 B ZEAEERE . ¢

160
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39.

(C)

Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (conmivuen) 3.

Key management compensation (C)

Key management includes directors (executive and non-
executive) and the senior management with their details
as set out in the “Biographical details of directors and
senior management” section of the annual report. The
compensation paid or payable to key management for
employee services is shown below:

AF BRI T

BB AERXS s

B 42 ‘5 32 A & B

MREEABBEER(MITEFEIH
TER)RSREEAE  BRALHF
BEMBERFR [EZRFRABRE
—fiN - MEAREBAEXNIERESR

AN
N

R E MBS T
2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥®T T ARBTT

Salaries and other short-term HFehEMEHES R
employee benefits 11,718 11,620
Retirement benefit BREA
— defined contribution plans — EfEM A 117 166
Total st 11,835 11,786
Amount due to a director () BN —(IEFFHIE

The details of the amount due to a director are as follows:

N — L EEHRENFFNAT :

2020 2019
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ETE

Mr. Yang Yirong BB E

- 26

The amount due to a director was unsecured, non-interest
bearing and was repayable on demand.

BN —UEFEZHRARERR  RERK
ARERERE -
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NOtes to the Consolidated Financial statements
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36. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
() Directors and chief executive's emoluments

162

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the
remuneration of every director and the chief executive is
set out below:

6. EENANRNER
() EFRTBAEZNE

HZE2020F12A31HILFE r BRES
MITHBEOFHMAT

2020
Salaries Retirement
Director's and benefit
fees allowance scheme
Name of Director E3pg EZHe FEREH BRAEAHE

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR AR®TR ARETR

2019
Salaries  Retirement
Director's and benefit
Total fees  allowance scheme Total
@t ESHe HoREM RNEFEE it

RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARMTR ARETT ARETT ARETRT ARETR

Executive Directors: YTES:
Mr. Yang Yirong BRE

(Chairman and President) €572 9) 659 1,861
Mr. Gong Xionghui 05353 391 406
Ms. Lu Jiahua EXE 391 784
Mr. Lin David Ying Tsung HRR 375 704
Mr. Lin Zhigang SR 391 562
Mr. Han Huan Guang Bk 391 976
Independent Non-Executive B ##/TEE

Directors:
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen itk 193 13
Professor Xiang Ming (Note (i)) [185 (B &E(i)) 193 -
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John ~ #E# 193 13

17
17
17

17
16

2,537 648 1,798 25 2,471
814 385 389 25 799
1,192 385 783 25 1,193
1,079 369 704 = 1,073
970 385 519 25 929
1,383 385 964 16 1,365
206 190 13 = 203
193 141 13 = 154
206 190 13 = 203

Note (i): Professor Xiang Ming has been appointed as an INED of
the Company on 9 April 2019.

During the year, no discretionary bonuses, remunerations
paid or receivable in respect of accepting office as director
and emoluments paid or receivable in respect of director’s
other service in connection with the affairs of the Company
or its subsidiary undertakings were paid or made, directly
or indirectly, to the directors; nor are any payable (2019:
nil).

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: nil).
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36.

37.

Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS

(CONTINUED)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
penerits

During the year, no retirement benefits, payments or
benefits in respect of termination of directors’ services
were paid or made, directly or indirectly, to the directors;
nor are any payable (2019: nil).

Gonsideration pravided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

No consideration was provided to or receivable by third
parties for making available directors’ services (2019: nil).

Information apout loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entitles with such
directors

As at 31 December 2020, there are no loans, quasi-loans
or other dealings in favour of the directors, their controlled

bodies corporate by and connected entities with such
directors (2019: None).

Directors” material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

None of the directors of the Company and their connected
entities had a material interest, directly or indirectly, in
any significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
or is a party that subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year (2019: None).

EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There are no significant events occurred after the balance
sheet date.

(D)

37.

B BB TS SRR B ot

CEENNBAER o)

ESRNEA KBEBER

REE  BEERIEERRAESRER
RAER ~ B4R LT = AR A R K IR
RN A B R(2019 : ) -

NERHESRBERNE=S
XM E
EEBERHEERBMEMETE= 2R

REHFE=F A LR HEE BRI M WER
FARE(2019 : &) o

BEANES  XEZEHIZ
AEREEZRHECERE
RRBAZEFR - BREHR
EHtRX 52 EM

R2020%12A310 - BIBERES - BF

ZEEFHEABRBIEREERELN
EX - BUERINZEALIRERA

R E 22 5 (2019 ¢ ) o

EENRY RHHEHL
BAM S

REZANFHER  ARAALJ|ERTE
MERAREBZEBMARB ZEEK
HE e R MEEETHREEXN
BuacB8BRS  ZHKAER (2019 :
&) -

GHERARSEHE

RARARIREE BT EZREFRNERS
I8 o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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38. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTOF 38. AR B NEERBEXRK

THE COMPANY REZE
(a) Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December  (a) BHZEWOFERANB EARRA
2020 AIMEERGER
2020 2019
Note RMB’'000 RMB'000
M FE AR¥T T ARETF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets REBEE
Investments in and amounts RB AR Z’E &
due from subsidiaries FE U B B A T 308 401,974 401,974
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries e KB A T3k 1,709,493 1,260,220
Derivative financial instruments f£744g T A - 276
Cash and cash equivalents HeRREEED 6,151 6,715
1,715,644 1,267,211
Total assets WEE 2,117,618 1,669,185
EQUITY e

Equity attributable to owners EXREBREQATEEE
of the Company

Share capital A& 2R 75,380 75,380
Share premium IR A B 341,876 341,876
Other reserves HAabfE G (b) 102,426 102,426
Retained earnings REB & F (c) 122,866 63,011
Total equity R 642,548 582,693
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Notes to the Gonsolidated Financial Statements

38. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF
THE GUMPANY (CONTINUED)

(@) Balance sheet of the Company as at 31 December
2020 (continued)

AF BRI T

. AAANEEEEBERK
REZH -

() BE200F2ANHE EARF
MEEREBER &)

2020 2019
Note RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5 AR T AREEF T
LIABILITIES =
Non-current liabilities IARBEE
Borrowings B’E 1,330,602 546,590
Current liabilities RBEE
Borrowings (== 138,005 536,065
Derivative financial instruments {744 T A 3,380 1,172
Accruals and other payables FE=T & A N E 4th B A~ 3 3,083 2,665
144,468 539,902
Total liabilities “me s 1,475,070 1,086,492
Total equity and liabilities HEZRERS 2,117,618 1,669,185

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the
Board of Directors on 31 March 2021 and was signed on its
behalf.

YANG YIRONG
EHE
Chairman
*E

ARAMEERBERCABEEERN2021
FIAEHZ  YHEFELREE -

LU JIAHUA
EXRE
Executive Director

HITEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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38. BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENTOF 38. AR B NEERBEXRK

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) Fﬁﬁﬁ E}J (%)
(D) Other reserve movement of the Company (0) A EA S
Share
options
Capital equity
Capital redemption reserve
reserve reserve -1:¢: Total
BARE RABEEMHE R A @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTT  ARKETE ARETRT

At 1 January 2019, R2019F1 718 -

31 December 2019 and 201912 A31H K

31 December 2020 2020512 A31H 90,941 71 10,774 102,426
(c) Retained earnings movement of the Company ) AeREENEH

RMB'000
ARETIT
At 1 January 2019 #K2019F1/81H 42,203
Profit for the year FERE 59,884
2018 final dividend 2018 2 KR HEARR B (27,183)
2019 interim dividend 20194 Z R HEARL B (11,893)
At 31 December 2019 A2019F12H31H 63,011
At 1 January 2020 7K2020F1A1H 63,011
Profit for the year FERNE 106,439
2019 final dividend 20196 2 KEIR B (33,992)
2020 interim dividend 20204 2 FHAR% B (12,592)
At 31 December 2020 7A2020612H31H 122,866
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FIVE-Year rinancial summary
AFHBHRE

AY 172 E
RESULTS EF
Year ended 31 December
BZ12A3101LEE
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETRT AR%®T:R
Revenue WA 1,632,779 1,571,382 2,198,217 2,422,810 2,510,021
Operating profit BT 301,251 236,659 416,192 367,074 409,637
Finance expenses HBER (81,128) 5,682 (100,309) (42,254) 100,957
Share of losses of associates and  [E{EHE L BB 1M EE K
provision for impairment of BERERERE
investment in an associate (386) 307 966 1,638 604
Profit before taxation TR 219,737 242,648 316,849 326,458 511,198
Taxation IR (74,229) (58,881) (101,558) (97,418) (102,773)
Profit for the year FEAE 145,508 183,767 215,291 229,040 408,425
Profit/(loss) attributable to: FE/(BE)RER
Owners of the Company AREBREE 145,383 183,767 215,291 229,949 408,404
Non-controlling interests FEE R i 125 = = (909) 21
145,508 183,767 215,291 229,040 408,425
Dividends B E 28,108 29,291 37,329 45,885 49,895
Earnings per share (RMB cents) EREF|(H ARE)
Basic AR 22.4 26.8 27.78 29.67 52.69
Diluted 3 223 26.8 21.77 29.67 52.69
FINANCIAL POSITIONS BT R
As at 31 December
HZ128318
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETRT AR%T:R
Non-current assets EMBEE 460,229 556,978 1,179,097 1,601,601 2,157,630
Current assets mBEE 2,689,918 2,879,668 3,022,363 3,082,895 3,266,132
Total assets BEHAE 3,150,147 3,436,646 4,201,460 4,684,496 5,423,762
Non-current liabilities AR 280,052 514,785 823,343 637,525 1,481,807
Current liabilities TERE 1,263,160 1,010,459 1,282,278 1,751,177 1,284,658
Total liabilities BERE 1,543,212 1,525,244 2,105,621 2,388,702 2,766,465
Net assets BERE 1,606,935 1,911,402 2,095,839 2,295,794 2,657,297
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borporate Information
RNEE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman & President)
Ms. Lu Jiahua

Mr. Gong Xionghui

Dr. Lin David Ying Tsung

Mr. Han Huan Guang

Mr. Lin Zhigang

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John
Prof. Xiang Ming

BOARD GOMMITTEES
Audit Committee

Mr. Yau Fook Chuen (Chairman)
Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John
Prof. Xiang Ming

Remuneration Gommittee

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John (Chairman)
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen

Prof. Xiang Ming

Ms. Lu Jiahua

Mr. Han Huan Guang

Nomination Gommittee

Mr. Yang Yirong (Chairman)
Mr. Yau Fook Chuen

Prof. Xiang Ming

Mr. Wong Yik Chung, John
Mr. Han Huan Guang

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Lam Kwok Kin FCCA, FCPA

AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
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REGISTERED OFFICE

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

HEAD OFFICE AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suite 5301, 53rd Floor
Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINGIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 1093

Boundary Hall, Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 54, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai, Hong Kong

PRINGIPAL BANKERS

Agricultural Bank of China
Bank of China

Bank of Communications
Bank of East Asia
Citibank, N.A.

China Citic Bank

CTBC

Far Eastern International Bank
Hang Seng Bank

KBC Bank N.V.

0-Bank

Standard Chartered Bank
Taishin International Bank
United Overseas Bank

Gorporate Information
NCIE- b

R Y

Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681

Grand Cayman, KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

BNEERER

TESEMEH
BEET
B 1855
FIRES
5315301 %

ROBFETERE

Maples Fund Services (Cayman) Limited
P.O. Box 1093

Boundary Hall, Cricket Square

Grand Cayman KY1-1102

Cayman Islands

ROBFETE
BRTE

EEERERBRAR
BEET
ERRNER1835%
AR L5418
FTEARET
PR R EIRT
FEIERTT

RIEIRTT

HaniRTT

TEFESRTT

FR{EIRTT
RS e ERAT
RRBEEEERT
B4 RTT

LE I ES B A SR 1T
FEMERT
BITIRTT

BB ERTT
RERTT

Annual Report 2020 | —Z - ZTFFf

199



sharenolder Information
R &

Listing: Listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited since 9 March 2004

Stock Code: 2341

Board Lot: 2,000

Par Value: HK$0.1

Trading Currency: HK$

FINANCIAL CALENDAR 2021

Financial year ended
Full year results announced
Register of members closed
(for ascertaining shareholders’ rights to
attend and vote at annual general meeting)
Annual general meeting
Ex-entitlement date for final dividend
Register of members closed
(for determining entitlement to final dividend)
Record date for final dividend
Despatch of dividend warrants
Interim results to be announced

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed a final dividend of HK5.7 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 payable to
shareholders on the register of members of the Company on 18
June 2021.

31 December 2020
31 March 2021
3-8 June 2021

8 June 2021
11 June 2021
16-18 June 2021

18 June 2021
on or about 6 August 2021
on or about 31 August 2021

Subject to approval of the proposed final dividend by the
shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company to be held on 8 June 2021, the final dividend warrants
will be despatched to the shareholders of the Company on or
about 6 August 2021.
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CLOSING OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 3 June 2021 to Tuesday, 8 June 2021, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be effected.
In order to qualify for attendance of annual general meeting,
all completed transfer forms accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged for registration with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor
Tengis Limited no later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 2 June
2021.

The register of members of the Company will also be closed from
Wednesday, 16 June 2021 to Friday, 18 June 2021, both days
inclusive, during which no transfer of shares will be effected.
To rank for the proposed final dividend, all completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company’s branch share
registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong, Tricor Tengis Limited
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 15 June 2021.

SHAREHOLDER SERVIGES

For enquiries about share transfer and registration, please
contact the Company’s branch share registrar and transfer office
in Hong Kong:

Tricor Tengis Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Telephone: (852) 2980 1333

Facsimile: (852) 2810 8185

Email: is-enquiries@hk.tricorglobal.com

Holders of the Company’s shares should notify the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong promptly
of any change of addresses.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

For enquiries relating to investor relations, please contact:

EcoGreen International Group Limited
Suite 5301, 53rd Floor, Central Plaza
18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Telephone : (852) 2530 0609
Facsimile (852) 2530 0619

Email ir-contact@ecogreen.com
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